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	NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group Governing Body

Part 1

A G E N D A 


The next meeting of the NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group Governing Body will be held at Regent House, Stockport at 9am on Wednesday 27 May 2015.
This is a meeting held in public and is a not consultative meeting. The Chair reserves the absolute right to involve or not members of the public or other interested parties as they see fit in order to ensure that all of the meeting’s business is addressed.
	
	Agenda item
	Report
	Action
	Indicative Timings
	Lead

	

	1
	Apologies
	Verbal


	To receive and note
	9.00am
	A Johnson


	2
	Declarations of Interest

	Verbal
	To make declarations
	
	

	3


	Approval of the draft Minutes of the meeting held on 8 April 2015

	Minutes Attached
	To receive and approve


[image: image1.emf]Item 3 DRAFT NHS 

Stockport CCG Governing Body Minutes Part I  8 April 2015.docx



	
	

	4


	Actions Arising
	Action Sheet Attached 


	To receive and note
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arising from Governing Body Meeting of 8 April 2015.doc



	
	

	5
	Notification of items for Any Other Business


	Verbal
	To note

	
	A Johnson

	6


	Annual Reports and Accounts


	Report
	To receive 
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	09.05am


	G Jones / D Dolman

	7
	External Audit Report


	Report to follow

	To receive 


[image: image5.emf]Audit Findings report 

- Stockport CCG - 2014-15.pdf



	09.30am
	M Thomas

	8
	Approval of Annual Report and Accounts


	Verbal
	To approve
	09:50am
	A Johnson

	9
	Signing of Annual Report and Accounts


	Verbal
	To sign
	09.55am

	R Gill / G Jones



	10
	Any other business as raised in agenda item 5


	Verbal
	
	10.00am
	A Johnson



	
	Date, Time and Venue of Next meeting

The next NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group Governing Body meeting will be held on Wednesday 10 June 2015 at 10am at a venue to be confirmed.
Potential agenda items should be notified to stoccg.gb@nhs.net by Friday 29 May 2015




Chair:  		Ms J Crombleholme


Enquiries to: 	Laura Latham


		0161 426 5210


		Laura.latham1@nhs.net
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NHS STOCKPORT CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP



DRAFT

MINUTES OF THE GOVERNING BODY MEETING HELD AT REGENT HOUSE, STOCKPORT

ON WEDNESDAY 8th APRIL 2015 PART I

PRESENT

		

		





		Ms J Crombleholme

		Lay Member (Chair)



		Mrs G Mullins

		Chief Operating Officer 



		Mr G Jones

		Chief Finance Officer 	



		Dr C Briggs

		Clinical Director for Quality and Provider Management



		Dr V Owen-Smith

		Clinical Director for Public Health



		Mr J Greenough

		Lay Member



		Miss K Richardson

		Nurse Member



		Dr P Carne	

		Locality Chair: Cheadle and Bramhall



		Dr L Hardern

		Locality Chair: Stepping Hill and Victoria



		Dr A Johnson

		Locality Chair: Marple and Werneth (Vice Chair)



		

IN ATTENDANCE



		



		Mr M Chidgey

		Director of Quality and Provider Management



		Mr R Roberts

		Director for General Practice Development



		Mrs L Hayes 

		Head of Communications and Engagement 

(taking minutes)



		Cllr J Pantall

		Chair of the Stockport Health & Wellbeing Board



		Mr T Stokes

		Representative of Stockport Healthwatch



		Mr T Ryley

		Director of Strategic Planning and Governance



		

		



		

		            

           APOLOGIES



		

		



		Dr R Gill

		Chief Clinical Officer 



		Dr D Kendall

		Consultant member



		Dr J Higgins

		Locality Chair: Heatons and Tame Valley



		Dr V Mehta

		Clinical Director for General Practice Development








42/15 APOLOGIES



J Crombleholme welcomed the Governing Body, members of the public and staff to the meeting.



Apologies were received from Dr Ranjit Gill, Dr Viren Mehta, Dr Deborah Kendall, Dr Peter Carne and Dr James Higgins.





43/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST



V Owen Smith declared that she was no longer employed by Public Health England but now held an honorary contract with NHS Stockport Foundation Trust for two days per week.





44/15 APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 MARCH 2015



The draft minutes of the meeting held on 11 March 2015 were accepted as a correct record of the meeting with the following amendments:



24/15 D Kendall did not make her declarations of interest at the meeting therefore this paragraph is to be removed.

27/15 ‘Delivery of planned surplus has been achieved’ needs to be amended to ‘forecast to be achieved’.

29/15 The number of national Vanguard sites to be amended from ‘28’ to ‘29’.





45/15 ACTIONS ARISING



The members reviewed the outstanding items:



021114 – R Roberts reported that alcohol is a firm part of the prevention work therefore this action was noted as complete and to be removed from the list.

051114 – Action covered as part of the agenda. To be removed.

011214 – The minute was amended to state that the process would be to undertake a factual accuracy check, then to go to Quality and Provider management committee then to Governing Body.

010215 – Action complete and removed from list.

020215 – Action covered as part of the agenda. To be removed.

030215 – Date amended to ‘June’.

090215 – Action complete and removed from list.

050215 – Action complete and removed from list.

020315 – Action complete and removed from list.



C Briggs added that she had escalated the ambulance concerns to the System Resilience Group and the ambulance service had agreed to attend the May meeting to discuss their action plan.



46/15 PATIENT STORY



The Governing Body viewed a patient story from a lady diagnosed with Osteopenia. She had been reluctant to start on medication for her condition and was advised that walking could help to ease the problem. She had taken up walking every day with her husband and improved her diet. At her next scan she had not lost any height and the osteopenia had gone from her spine. She enthused about the benefits of walking.



V Owen Smith commented on how positive the story was. She referred to a recent national report which stated that if everybody was physically active all chronic diseases would be reduced by 20%.



A Johnson said that there needs to be a consistency of message as mixed messages to the public often cause confusion. For example, it is sometimes advised that vigorous exercise is more beneficial than walking.



J Crombleholme asked about the support available to CCG staff to encourage physical activity. V Owen Smith suggested that the CCG could follow the staff health strategy used at the council.



T Ryley suggested that the CCG focuses on two simple messages and consistently repeats them; benefits of walking and advice on safe alcohol levels. V Owen Smith added ‘smoking’ to this list as these are the three on the prevention and empowerment agenda.



J Crombleholme informed the Governing Body about the ‘park runs’ which take place at various parks in Stockport on Saturday mornings. 



47/15 PERFORMANCE REPORT



Resilience and compliance report



G Mullins reported that pressure continued in A&E and it would be unlikely that the target for April would be delivered. Referral to Treatment times also showed slower progress than planned and two patients have been waiting over 52 weeks at Tameside Hospital.



C Briggs informed Governing Body that she had been working with the System Resilience Group to look at how to improve the flow through wards and other issues within A&E. J Crombleholme expressed concerns that this issue is still not being resolved, she added that the Board to Board meeting with Stockport Foundation Trust will focus on the root causes of the problems and what action needs to be taken to address this. 



G Mullins reported that a there had been an improvement in complaints handling and the target timeframe for responses. J Greenough agreed that this was good news and queried how many complaints are received per year. This is under 100 per year.



J Greenough asked about the System Resilience Group actions on the ambulance performance and what the sanctions would be for no improvement in performance. G Mullins explained that the next measure would be a performance improvement processes with Monitor. She also emphasised that the underperformance is a measure of the system and it is important to get to the root cause and work out what needs to change. 



C Briggs added that the System Resilience Group is enabling a joint system view but this is still evolving. A Johnson said that it is clinical involvement that will help to change things.



T Stokes asked why there was membership from NHS England on the group. It was explained that as Stockport is in the spotlight on A&E and ambulance targets it helps with ongoing communication about performance.



J Crombleholme raised concerns about the 2 over 52 week waits at Tameside Hospital. M Chidgey explained that Tameside had implemented a new PAS system which had meant for a period they had not been able to track or fully report on issues.



The report was noted and approved.





Quality report



M Chidgey provided the quality report. He highlighted the paper that had been received by the committee on changes to commissioning arrangements for the Speech and Language Therapy schools service. This would focus resource on the first stage of development and treatment packages. This is intended to clarify commissioning arrangements and address capacity shortfalls. The committee approved the proposals and agreed that as part of the transitional process all children on the case load would have one further treatment. Governing Body agree that this was the most reasonable option.



J Crombleholme highlighted the concerns raised by the Quality committee with regard to sickness levels and vacancies in the District Nurse service. Governing Body were informed that this would be discussed at the Board to Board meeting with Stockport NHS Foundation Trust.



T Ryley asked what work had been done on root causes of the sickness levels. M Chidgey said that a risk assessment of the impact of the vacancies would be provided but not a root cause analysis. It is expected that this will be worked through during the transformation (Stockport Together) work.



K Richardson raised that the TIA performance rating had been reduced to ‘Amber’. She explained that this decision from the committee had been based on the audit which had shown that no patients had experienced a stroke or TIA during the time elapsed between referral and investigation. TIA would continue to feature high on the agenda but as there had been no patient harm the issues rating had been reduced.



The report was noted and approved.



Cancer performance report



A Johnson introduced the Cancer 62 day report. This had been provided in response to concerns raised by the Governing Body following continued failure of the target.



M Chidgey highlighted the chart within the paper which depicted the key cancer standards and how these fit together. The problems occur when patients need to access diagnostics and transfer between providers. Stockport is currently performing below the Greater Manchester average.



A Johnson explained that there can also be other reasons for breaches, for example, in head and neck cancers as this can involve mutilations this sometimes causes people to pause before going ahead with treatment.



M Chidgey explained that the actions that had been agreed with providers would be to focus more on managing patients within the system, draft and consult on a new local access policy, and to continue to review and improve pathways. It was also proposed that the cancer board role would be revised meaning that accountability for performance would be retained but the detail would be undertaken by the performance teams.



Governing Body confirmed that a sufficient level of detail had been provided with regard to performance and approved the actions and revised role of the cancer board.





Finance report



G Jones reported that at month 11 in the financial year the CCG is continuing to forecast a surplus of £4.28m. The Governing Body were reminded that this had been achieved through planned slippage on investments therefore not addressing recurrent measures. 



The Governing Body noted:

· The returned CHC legacy national risk pool underspend has been used to mitigate against Q4 cost pressures.

· The delivery of the planned £4.28m surplus has been achieved through one off measures which do not address the underlying recurrent issues.

· The on-going work being carried out by the QiPP group to deliver against the CCGs planned surplus.



48/15 REPORT OF THE CHAIR



The chair had no news to report.



49/15 REPORT OF THE CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER



G Mullins updated members on co-commissioning. The terms of reference had been updated to reflect the additional members and national rules and had been submitted to NHS England. A meeting of the committee would be held in public on 22nd April at Regent House. J Crombleholme said that she had spoken to Healthwatch about lay membership on the committee.



Governing Body were updated on the Commissioning Support Unit and the commissioning intentions. The management team had undertaken detailed work on the arrangements and had submitted intentions for bringing services in-house or sharing services. Business cases would need to be developed for these services.



G Mullins reported that the re-procurement of the Wet AMD service was nearing completion. Originally it had been planned that a recommendation would be made to the April meeting of the Governing Body but this had not been possible.



In order to minimise delay in mobilisation it was recommended that delegated authority be given to G Mullins (Chief Operating Officer) and R Gill (Chief Clinical Officer) to make the decision on behalf of the Governing Body. A paper would then be brought to the next meeting of the Governing Body setting out the basis of the award.



Governing Body approved the delegated authority to G Mullins and R Gill.



Members were updated on the Greater Manchester Devolution and reviewed the report to the CCGs Association Governing Group on the integration of health and social care across Greater Manchester. J Pantall reported the council had endorsed the Memorandum Of Understanding for devolution. 



Governing Body noted:

· The final terms of reference of the Co-commissioning committee.

· The CSU commissioning intentions

· Approved delegated authority to the Chief Clinical Officer and Chief Operating Officer to award the Wet AMD contract

· The report agreed at the Greater Manchester Association of CCGs and endorsed the Memorandum of Understanding

· Approval of the Healthier Together Joint Committee Terms of Reference







50/15 LOCALITY CHAIRS UPDATE



 A Johnson presented the Locality Chairs report. He raised concerns around pace of change and communication to practices particularly in relation to the Vanguard bid.

He also reported that the care homes work was progressing with agreed allocations and meetings are being held with Care Homes to work through the practicalities.



J Crombleholme agreed that the timeliness of communications to members also needs to be considered.



51/15 OPERATIONAL PLAN AND FINANCIAL PLAN



T Ryley informed Governing Body that the CCG was required to submit a plan on 7th April. As this date had been brought forward it did not fit with the Governing Body timetable. 



Governing Body were reminded that they had advised the management team to look at prioritising the work in the plan. A meeting had taken place with locality chairs which had focussed on referral management and each area of work was prioritised against a scale of 1-6. 



G Jones reported that the 2015/16 draft plan sent to NHS England had received significant challenge back. 1% surplus is the NHS England target expected to be achieved. Following further work the CCG had moved to a position to forecast £750k surplus which equates to 0.2%. This position is expected to mean that the CCG will be subject to a deep dive.



Governing Body discussed the tension point between providing a realistic and deliverable plan and coming under pressure now against pressure for non-delivery at the end of the year.



The financial plan and QIPP programme for 2015/16 was approved. The Governing Body also acknowledged that in planning for a surplus of £750k the CCG is in breach of NHSE scrutiny and attention.



52/15 CLINICAL POLICY COMMITTEE



V Owen Smith presented the Clinical Policy Committee update. In line with Department of Health guidance it was proposed that the erectile dysfunction drug now be available on prescription for all patients who meet the criteria. The financial impact had been considered by the committee alongside equity, equality and the street value of the drugs. 



Governing Body were briefed on the recommendations of the committee on TA325 Nalmefene. The committee had discussed the NICE technology appraisal and concluded that as alcohol is a significant problem, there is a place for Nalmefene in the community. The recommendation from the committee was that eligible patients are identified and their progress tracked in order to evaluate the impact of the service. A trial of psychological support was recommended to be offered by Health Stockport for three months. This approach will enable the CCG to understand the benefits for the population. Governing Body approved the recommendation.



Governing Body approved the decision on Erectile Dysfuntion prescribing and noted:

· The update and recommendations on TA325 Nalmefene

· Update on Greater Manchester EUR policies

· The endorsed recommendations for the black and grey list

· The endorsed recommendations from the New Therapies sub group

· The costing summary for NICE TAs

· The minutes of the Clinical Policy meeting 25th February 2015





53/15 HEALTH & WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REVIEW OF ALCOHOL SERVICES 



Cllr Tom McGee presented the Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny committee review of Alcohol misuse services in Stockport. He explained that they had undertaken this review as national figures showed that there was a problem relating to alcohol in Stockport. In all but one indicator Stockport was categorised as ‘significantly worse than the national average’.



Cllr Tom McGee highlighted that the problem was not necessarily reflective of the popular image of problem drinkers. For example, the most affluent population were found to be drinking larger amounts more regularly.



There was a discussion about the low numbers of referrals to the alcohol service as highlighted in the report. A Johnson and L Harden explained that the majority of alcohol referrals are ‘self-referrals’ and this would be the advised route for patients.



Cllr Tom McGee explained that the report did not present any recommendations as the public health department and joint transformation work would be looking at alcohol services. 

[bookmark: _GoBack]

54/15 ANY OTHER BUSINESS



There were no items of any other business.



55/15 DATE, TIME AND VENUE OF THE NEXT MEETING



The next meeting of NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group’s Governing Body will take place at 10.00 on Wednesday 10th June 2015 at Regent House, Stockport.









Questions from the Public



What is the basis of the £6bn transfer of funds to Manchester?



It was explained that this was based on existing spend on Health and Social care costs. 







What are the pre-operative smoking restrictions that are being planned?



V Owen Smith explained that conversations were ongoing about this. At the moment resources such as leaflets and podcasts from consultants were being worked on. Some engagement had taken place with patients and if there was to be a change in policy public views would be sought. It is not expected that there will be any policy change at this stage.
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C o n t e n t s
Section 1


1. Strategic Report 
•   About us
• NHS Stockport CCG Constitution
• The Population of Stockport
• Performance and Quality
• Highlights of 2014-15
• Digital Developments
• Developments for 2015-16
• Workforce
• Financial performance
• Better Payment Practice Code
• Prompt Payment Code
• Statutory Basis
• Sustainability


2. Members Report
•   Meet the Governing Body 
•   GP Member Representatives
•   Committees
•   Pension Liabilities
•   Members Interests
•   External audit
•   Sickness absence data
•   Cost allocation and setting of charges for information
•   Disclosure of Personal Data Related Incidents
•   Employee Consultation
•   Equality Disclosures
•   Health and Safety
•   Fraud
•   Emergency preparedness
•   Principles for Remedy
•   Exit Packages and Severance Payments
•   Off-payroll Engagements
•   Statement as to Disclosure of Auditors


3. Remuneration Report
•   Remuneration Committee Report
•   Policy on Remuneration of Senior Managers
•   Senior Managers Performance Related Pay
•   Policy on Senior Manager Contracts
•   Senior Manager Service Contracts
•   Payments to Past Senior Managers
•   Salaries Allowances
•   Payments for Loss of Office
•   Pension Benefits
•   Pay multiples


4. Statement of Accountable Officer responsibilities


5. Governance statement


6. Annual accounts
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About us
NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group (‘The CCG’) was formed on 1st April 2013.  
The CCG was licensed without conditions by NHS England.


The CCG is an NHS clinical commissioning group made up of the 48 General Practices in  
Stockport. The CCG commissions (buys) health and care services on behalf of patients  
registered with Stockport GPs. The services the CCG are responsible for include:


• Planned hospital care
• Urgent and emergency care
• Rehabilitation care
• Community health services
• Mental health and learning disability services


The CCG also works with patients and health and social care partners (for example, hospitals,  
the Local Authority and patient groups) to ensure services meet local health needs. 


The GP practices appointed a Governing Body to discharge the CCG responsibilities on their behalf. 


The CCG employs 108 members of staff who work alongside the GP members to carry out the  
work of the CCG as set out in its plans and priorities.


Strategic
Report
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P A G E  4


NHS Stockport CCG 
Constitution
The CCG has agreed a constitution which sets 
out how the organisation will carry out its 
duties and make decisions. For example:


• The CCG is a membership organisation.
• All GP practices in Stockport are members  


of the CCG.
• Each GP practice nominates a GP 


representative who has voting rights.
• The member representatives are collectively 


known as the Council of Members.
• The Council of Members has delegated the 


power to conduct the overall management 
of the CCG to a Governing Body.


• The CCG directly employs some staff  
and is supported by the North West 
Commissioning Support Unit to carry  
out some of its functions.


• In 2015 the CCG was approved at level 
2 co-commissioning. Co-commissioning 
is a key enabler in developing seamless, 
integrated out-of-hospital services based 
around the needs of local populations 
supporting the delivery of the CCG’s 
strategy to commission more services in a 
primary or community setting. Obtaining 
Level 2 co-commissioning will enable the 
CCG to enter into joint commissioning 
arrangements with NHS England from the 
1st April 2015 and therefore be involved in 
primary care commissioning decisions.


The Population of 
Stockport
The resident population of Stockport  
is 285,032 (2013).


There are: 


• 53,937 (18.9%) young people aged 0-15  
• 28,018 (9.8%) young adults aged 16-24 
• 148,570 (52.2%) adults aged 25-64 
• 54,507 (19.1%) older people aged 65+,  


of whom 
• 25,547 (9.0%) are aged 75+  
• 7,141 (2.5%) are aged 85+ 
• 2,546 (0.9%) are aged 90+


The CCG is funded based on the number 
of people registered with a Stockport GP 
Practice. The CCG’s registered population 
is 302,700 which is slightly higher than the 
resident population due to people who do live 
in Stockport registering with a Stockport GP 
Practice.


The CCG has organised itself into four GP 
practice localities:


• Cheadle and Bramhall
• Heatons and Tame Valley
• Marple and Werneth
• Stepping Hill and Victoria


Stockport NHS Foundation Trust serves the 
population of Stockport and the High Peak 
however:
 
• Approximately 70% of hospital admissions 


for Stockport residents are at Stockport NHS 
Foundation Trust 


• Around 12% are at University Hospital 
South Manchester NHS Foundation Trust 


• Around 9% are at Central Manchester NHS 
Foundation Trust 


Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust provides 
the population of Stockport with mental health 
services.


(Data attributed to Public Health, Stockport Metropolitan Borough 
Council)
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P A G E  5


Performance and 
Quality
The CCG is committed to monitoring the 
performance of health care providers from 
which it commissions services. All areas that 
do not meet national standards are subject to 
investigation and review by the CCGs Quality 
and Provider Management Committee.


The CCG has a full list of indicators and how it has 
performed against them are provided in Table A.


Cancer targets 
There has been good performance on all cancer 
targets with the exception of Cancer 62 day waits.


An example of consistently good performance 
includes the two week wait for the first 
outpatient appointment following an urgent 
referral from a GP.


Cancer 62 day waits 
This target is in place to ensure that all patients 
should wait a maximum of 62 days from 
their urgent GP referral to the start of their 
treatment. This 62-day standard also includes 
all patients referred from NHS cancer screening 
programmes (breast, cervical and bowel) and all 
patients whose consultants suspect they may 
have cancer.


This target has not been consistently achieved 
for Stockport patients in 2014-15 unlike the 
other cancer targets.  The Governing Body have 
regularly discussed this issue.  An action plan to 
improve performance has been agreed and will 
be closely monitored in 2015-16.


18 week waits
The target number of patients in Stockport 
on non-urgent referral routes have been seen 
within 18 weeks.
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Incidence of Healthcare 
Associated infection (MRSA  
and C Difficile)
Numbers of these infections have remained 
under the annual target. 


Accident and Emergency 4 hour 
waiting times


This target is in place to ensure that patients 
who go to A&E are either admitted, transferred 
or discharged within 4 hours of their arrival. 
Staff work exceptionally hard to try to ensure 
that patients are treated as quickly as possible.


Every month the CCG brings together all of the 
key services (including A&E, ambulance, social 
care, community and out of hours) to review 
ways that all partners can better work together, 
as one system, for the benefit of patients. This 
group decided how an additional c£2.6m was 
spent across the winter on extra doctors, nurses 
and beds.  This helped manage a really difficult 
period, in particular of respiratory disease in the 
elderly population.


The CCG is constantly looking at supporting 
services so that people’s urgent care needs can 
be met outside of hospital and this year the 
changes that have been made included:


• Extended GP practice opening times
• 3,868 community IV therapy treatments
• 25 additional beds in the community


Local partners across Stockport are prioritising 
the transformation of the whole health and 
social care system to ensure that patients who 
require urgent or emergency care are seen and 
treated in the right place and within the right 
time.
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Category A ambulance  
response times 
It is imperative that the most serious, life 
threatening calls made to the ambulance 
service are dealt with first.


Because of this, each call is proritised into 
nationally-agreed categories. Category A calls 
are those that must be responded to within 8 
minutes (the most time critical).


The CCG commissions the North West 
Ambulance Service (NWAS) to provide the 
ambulance service in Stockport. 


Across the country there has been considerable 
pressure on the ambulance services particularly 
over winter 2014-15.


To help ease the pressure the CCG have 
invested in the Pathfinder Service. This is a joint 
service provided by NWAS and our local GP 
out of hours service, Mastercall. The Pathfinder 
Service aims to reduce unnecessary ambulance 
journeys to hospital and where appropriate 
and clinically safe to do so treat patients in the 
comfort of their own home. There have been 
over 1,000 deflected admissions through the 
ambulance pathfinder scheme so far.


NHS Constitution Performance 2014-15 


Indicator Detailed descriptor 2014-15 
performance


National 
Standard


Referral to treatment 
pathways


% of admitted pathways within 18 weeks 91.03% 90%


% of non-admitted pathways within 18 weeks 94.32% 95%


% of incomplete pathways within 18 weeks 93.46% 92%


Diagnostic Test Waiting 
Times


The percentage of patients waiting 6 weeks or more for 
a diagnostic test


98.27% 99%


A&E Waiting times % patients who spend 4 hours or less in A&E 90.84% 95%


Cancer two week waits All cancer two week wait 95.08% 93%


two week wait for breast symptoms 95.32% 93%


Cancer 31 day waits
Cancer 31 day wait from diagnosis to first treatment 98.17% 96%


Cancer 31 day wait for subsequent treatment -surgery 97.36% 94%


Cancer 31 day wait for subsequent treatment - anti-
cancer drugs


100.00% 98%


Cancer 31 day wait for subsequent treatment - 
radiotherapy


100.00% 94%


Cancer 62 day waits Cancer 62 day wait from urgent GP referral to first 
treatment


82.24% 85%


Cancer 62 day wait from NHS Screening service to first 
treatment


91.47% 90%


Cancer 62 day wait following consultant upgrade to 
first treatment


75.74%
No National 


standard – local 
standard of 80% 


Healthcare acquired 
infections (HCAI)


Number of C-Difficile infections 84
Locally set target 


of 88


Dementia % diagnosis rate for people with dementia 68.19% ‘national ambition’ 
of 66% 
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P A G E  7


Highlights of 2014 – 
2015 


End of Life Care
Historically in Stockport around 70% of expected 
deaths occurred in hospital.    


In 2014 a pilot was implemented which 
brought together an integrated team from two 
organisations consisting of the district nursing 
(health) and reablement (Social Care) staff to work 
together to manage patients in the community 
who were in the last weeks or days of their life.  
This increased the community capacity and utilised 
existing services and staff skills working together 
as an integrated team.


Since the service has been operational 92% of 
patients who have been supported by the service 
have been able to die in their preferred place 
(usually at home) which is a 62% increase from 
Stockport baseline of 30% people dying at place 
of their choosing.  


This is a much better service for patients, their 
families and carers. It is also a more effective use 
of NHS resources.


The success of the pilot has led to the CCG 
commissioning the roll out of the service in all four 
localities of Stockport and the integrated service is 
now fully operational across Stockport.  


This model is also easily transferrable and 
Stockport is introducing this model as part of 
the proactive care transformation programme.  
This programme will deliver integrated locality 
teams around GP practices in neighbourhoods 
that will manage people with complex long term 
conditions.


Cancer Survival Rates
During 2014-15 Stockport was ranked as one of 
the best places in the country for surviving cancer. 
The figures were released by the UK Cancer 
Information Service and ranked Stockport as 5th 
in the country with over 7 out of every 10 people 
diagnosed with cancer surviving for at least one 
year. This is a huge achievement for the CCG 
and Stockport as a whole as just 15 years ago 
Stockport was ranked as 153rd. 


Improvement in Access to 
Psychological Therapies
Good progress has been made in relation to the 
length of time people have to wait to access 
psychological therapy. 78% of people now access 
treatment within 8 weeks and 95% of people 
access treatment within 18 weeks.


Extended Opening Hours at GP 
Practices
GP practices extended their opening hours this 
year to help ease the pressure on the hospital 
system and give patients more chance to get 
convenient appointments.


Some practices now open earlier – some as early 
as 7am – and often close later, giving working 
people the opportunity to see their GP without 
having to take time off. Any practices that closed 
for half a day now remain open all day.


Practices have also been developing innovative 
ways of helping patients to help themselves and 
feel more in control of their own health.


An example of this is the patient information 
evenings, being held at practices including 
Bramhall Health Centre and Lowfield Surgery, 
which see health experts coming to give talks 
on their health speciality so patients are better 
equipped to deal with problems.


This is particularly important for people with long 
term health conditions as it can help people to 
take control of their illness rather than their illness 
controlling them. 
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P A G E  8


Care Co-ordinators Role
As part of our programme of expanding primary care, a number 
of GP practices have introduced a care co-ordinator role.  These 
co-ordinators are there to support people who have been 
discharged from hospital, making sure they have prescriptions, 
dealing with any queries and making sure the discharge home 
goes smoothly.  


Blood Pressure Campaign
High blood pressure – known as hypertension – rarely has 
obvious symptoms but increases the risk of having a stroke or 
heart attack. Each year in Stockport 450 people suffer heart 
attacks and 220 have a stroke.
  
In April 2014 the CCG launched a blood pressure awareness campaign in Stockport Town Centre. 
The campaign continued throughout 2014 in local workplace settings including BT, Stagecoach and 
Robinsons Brewery.


The broad aim of the campaign was to reduce the number of people between 40 and 74 years who did 
not have a recorded blood pressure reading (in the past 5 years). At the start of the campaign 12,948 
adults over 45 in Stockport were flagged on the GP system as they were without a recorded blood 
pressure reading taken in the last 5 years. 


Over the course of the campaign 1794 blood pressure checks were taken. 


• 432 people were found to have Stage 1 hypertension (these people received lifestyle advice and/or 
were asked to contact their GP)


• 115 people were found to have Stage 2 hypertension (these people received lifestyle advice and/or 
were asked to contact their GP)


• 25 people were hypertensive emergencies (these people were advised to make an urgent 
appointment with their GP)


As part of the campaign, health kiosks were commissioned for 6 months (April to October 2014) at 7 
sites across Stockport. The health kiosks allowed individuals to measure their own blood pressure, weight, 
body mass index (BMI), body fat content and heart rate.


The CCG was shortlisted by the Chartered Institute for Public Relations for this campaign  in 2014.


HIGH


HIGH


HIGH HIGH


HIGH
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P A G E  9


Digital Developments


Health and Care Finder Mobile App


Local residents have said that they find it difficult to find out where to go for help and advice when they 
are ill. 


To respond to this the CCG has developed a mobile app which can be accessed from smartphones  
and tablets. 


The app has been created to give people a chance to take more control of their own health by developing 
their understanding of how to use and access local health and social care services, self-care options and 
lifestyle opportunities.


The app provides users with rapid and easy access to up-to-date local health and social care information 
including a directory of pharmacies, GPs, hospitals, clinics, care homes and other services. 


Users of the app can find the services that are nearest to them at any time. For example, for people trying 
to find a late night chemist, the app automatically sorts out which are the closest and provides opening 
hours, addresses and contact details. People can download the app from their app store.


GP Clinical Systems


The CCG have implemented a new, standardised clinical system, Emis Web, across a further 20 practices, 
resulting in 70% of the population being serviced by a single, modern GP clinical information system.


National Summary Care Record 


The CCG have implemented the national summary care record system across a further 20 practices, 
increasing the numbers of records available when people are accessing emergency or unplanned care in 
hospitals outside of Stockport.


 Download the new  


 ‘Stockport Health & Care  


 Finder’ App 


The handy location finder 
will quickly show services 
nearest to your location. 
You will find information 


on self-care and local health 
and care services.  


You can search ‘Stockport 
Health & Care Finder’  


in your App Store.


FREE
TO DOWNLOAD


 Self Care 


 NHS 111 


 Pharmacy 


 GP Care 


 Emergencies 


 GP Care -  
 Out of Hours 
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Better Care Fund


The Better Care Fund is intended to transform 
local health and social care services so that they 
work together to provide better joined up care 
and support. In 2014-15 the CCG has worked 
together with its partners, the local population 
and their representatives, member GP practices 
and staff to develop a shared ambition for deep 
and lasting change. Together they developed a 
plan which has been taken further through the 
Stockport Together joint transformation work and 
Vanguard bid (see below ‘Stockport Together’). 


The plan is based on the following ambitions:
• People will receive health and social care that 


is designed to keep them well rather than 
focusing on treating their symptoms when 
they become ill.


• Stockport people will have better knowledge, 
understanding and support to play an 
important part in preserving health and 
care services for future generations by using 
available resources wisely and will also see it 
as their responsibility to take control of their 
health and well-being in partnership with 
professionals.


• To ensure that preventing disease or the 
impact of disease will be core to services and 
professionals will see every consultation as an 
opportunity to ensure that patients are up to 
date with screening and immunisation and 
assess any risk factors for disease. 


• Access to mental health services will be 
improved to ensure that mental wellbeing  
is treated as well as physical health.


• People will be at the heart of the system, and 
care will wrap around them. 


• People will be helped by their doctor and 
wider team, to make use of a much more 
accessible and wider range of lifestyle change 
services. 


• GPs will be pivotal as the first point of contact 
for many people needing access to health and 
care, and for the early identification of disease. 
They will take responsibility for working with 
other care providers who will all make use of 
technology to ensure that every individual in 
Stockport receives the best care for their needs 
as close to home as possible.


• GPs providing care across a longer period 
of the week will lead and be supported in 
providing this care by modern community 
based integrated (joined-up) care teams of 
health and social care professionals working 
in each of four localities in Stockport. Within 
these localities routine services will be available 
more of the week, offering a much wider 
range of proactive and responsive services 
that meet the needs of patients in a modern 
society.  


• To help people to understand how to take care 
of themselves and prevent the development 
or rapid progression of long-term physical and 
mental health illnesses.  A targeted prevention 
approach will be implemented. Service users 
will be fully included in the co-production 
of any development of services, and ensure 
that they are connected to other people 
with similar needs and health conditions so 
that they can share emotional and practical 
support. 


The local Better Care Fund plan 
was signed off by the CCG 
Governing Body, Local Authority 
and Health and Wellbeing Board 
in 2014. The work has been 
progressed through the Stockport 
Together joint transformation 
programme and application to 
become a Vanguard site (see below 
‘Stockport Together’).


Developments for 2015-16
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Stockport 
Together 


Over the 
coming years, 
health and 
social care 
will be subject 
to increasing 
demand from 
an ageing population and worsening financial 
position. The CCG with Stockport NHS Foundation 
Trust, Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council, 
and Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust began 
work in 2014 to develop a single strategic plan to 
improve health and social care services across the 
borough. This transformation programme is called 
‘Stockport Together’.


A small independent portfolio office has been 
established by the partner organisations to 
support them in the development and delivery of 
the Stockport Together programme, which will 
seek to address these challenges.


The four partner organisations have committed 
to make this work a top priority, having engaged 
external support to work with professionals and 
leaders across Stockport to develop an overall 
strategic plan for the borough and tailored 
strategies for four programme areas:


• Prevention and Empowerment
• Proactive Care
• Urgent Care 
• Planned Care


Initial strategic planning work culminated in a 
congress at the end of January 2015. This two-day 
event was attended by around 100 clinical and 
professional staff from the partner organisations 
and sought to secure approval for the outline 
approach for the four programmes, forming the 
basis of the single strategic plan for Stockport.


The design and implementation of the four 
programmes will be progressed in 2015 supported 
by a programme of communication to ensure staff 
and the wider public are kept updated on progress 
and the impact.


The Stockport Together work is designed to 
provide a framework to enable the partner 
organisations to effectively work together to 


ensure that the best possible care is being 
provided to the people of Stockport.


Simply put, the primary objectives for the people 
of Stockport are to have:


• An NHS that is there for people when they 
need it


• Social care that is there for people when they 
need it


• A healthy population with a good quality of 
life


The ‘Stockport Together’ partnership has been 
successful in its application to be in the first wave 
of Vanguard sites. The bid will mean that the 
partnership will now have the opportunity to work 
with NHS England and national partners to co-
design and establish the transformation of health 
and social care in Stockport.


Work will continue over the coming months on 
developing the design of the new models for 
service delivery. Communication, consultation and 
engagement exercises will be undertaken over the 
forthcoming months to ensure that all employees, 
stakeholders and the people of Stockport are 
advised of the changes being proposed and 
implemented. 


Public involvement


The CCG has a duty to involve and consult local 
people and stakeholders in the planning and 
development of services. The clinical leadership 
of the CCG has been very clear that it wants 
patient views to be at the heart of everything the 
it does. From 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2015 
the CCG spoke to nearly 5000 people. In addition 
the communications and engagement function 
supported GP practices to conduct their own 
surveys of over 300 people throughout the year. 


Topics of engagement included:


• Deaf health services
• Blood pressure
• Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disorder 


(COPD)
• Healthier Together consultation
• Urgent care services
• Angiography services
• GP services in care homes
• Self care
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A wide variety of communication methods were 
used, to reach more people, and different groups 
within Stockport’s community and give the CCG a 
better understanding of local views on the health 
service and priorities for change.


In addition, the CCG has 19 lay members covering 
11 committees; patient stories were filmed 
and played at the start of the CCG’s monthly 
Governing Body meetings; the CCG’s Chief 
Clinical Officer holds monthly meetings with 
the chair of Healthwatch Stockport; and the GP 
practices feed in patient views through regular 
locality meetings.


The CCG would like to thank the Patient 
Panel who have supported us this year by 
giving up their time to attend meetings and 
share their views on a number of topics.


Healthier Together consultation


The Healthier Together programme is a key part 
of the wider programme for health and social care 
reform across Greater Manchester, which aims 
to provide the best health and care for Greater 
Manchester. There are three elements to the 
Healthier Together programme – integrated care, 
primary care and in-hospital care.


The Healthier Together programme was 
launched in February 2012 and commenced pre-
consultation in August 2012. Throughout the pre-
consultation period, the programme undertook 
comprehensive engagement with local clinicians, 
stakeholders, patients and the public as part of 
initiatives to help shape the model of care leading 
up to the development of viable options that were 
taken forward to consultation. 


July 8th 2014 saw the launch of the Healthier 
Together public consultation across Greater 
Manchester on the future of health and care 
services. The consultation ended on 30th 
September 2014, but responses were still 
accepted until 24th October 2014.


The CCG communications and engagement 
team ran an extensive programme of activity 
to encourage involvement in the consultation. 
This included public meetings, face to face 
engagement in public places e.g. supermarkets 
and at local groups e.g. carers for adults with 
learning disabilities, residents associations etc.
There were 4098 responses received from 
Stockport residents, which accounted for 20% 
of the overall number of responses received in 
Greater Manchester. 


Healthier Together will make a decision in Summer 
2015 about how hospitals in Greater Manchester 
are organised.


Greater Manchester Health and 
Social Care Devolution Briefing


In February 2015, Greater Manchester and 
NHS England announced groundbreaking plans 
around the future of health and social care with a 
signed memorandum agreeing to bring together 
health and social care budgets amounting to 
c£6bn. The CCG alongside the other eleven 
Greater Manchester CCGs, NHS England, 10 
local authorities and 15 NHS providers will agree 
a framework for health and social care. The 
devolution will aim to ensure that health and 
social care spending better reflects local needs. 
Stockport health and social care leaders will be 
heavily involved in the planning for devolution in 
2015-2016 and ensuring that it benefits delivery 
of care and support for Stockport people.
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Workforce
As at 31st March 2015 the CCG employed 110 staff which equates to 89.85 whole time equivalent people.


Of the 110 employees, 92 were on substantive contracts; 14 were on fixed-term contract and 4 were bank 
staff.


In-year, there has been a turnover rate of 7.19%, compared to 12.48% across CCGs in Greater Manchester, 
and national average of 13.6%.


The majority of the CCG’s staff worked on Agenda for Change pay bands 6, 7, and 8a.


Age:  0.9% of employees were under 20 years old; 7.3% were in their 20s; 15.4% were in their 30s; 
30.9% were in their 40s; 40% were in their 50s; and 5.4% in their 60s.


Gender: 70% of staff were female and 30% male. 46.7% of female employees worked part-time, while 
only 27.2% of male employees worked part time.
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While women make up 70% of the workforce, only 56% of senior managers (Agenda for Change bands 
8a and above) and 50% of Governing Body members were female.


Staff Group
Female Male


# % # %
Governing Body 7 50% 7 50%


Senior Managers (Bands 8a+) 26 56% 20 44%


Staff on pay Bands 1-7 51 79.68% 13 20.32%


All CCG employees 77 70% 33 30%


Ethnicity:  87.27% of staff were white; 0.91% mixed race; 3.64% Asian; 1.82% Black; and 6.36%  
have not declared their ethnicity.


Marital Status: 62.73% of employees were married; 0.91% in a civil partnership; 5.45% divorced; 
1.82% legally separated; 0.91% widowed; 25.45% single: and 2.73% unknown.


Full time - Male


Part time - Male


Full time - Female


Part time - Female9 24


36


41
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Sexual Orientation: 53.64% of staff were heterosexual; 2.73% LGBT; and 43.63% did not disclose 
their sexual orientation.


Disability: 3.64% of employees declared a disability; 52.73% said they had no disability and  
43.64% did not declare


Religious Belief: 43.64% of employees reported their religion as Christian; 10.91% were atheist;  
0.91% Buddhist; 0.91% Hindu; 0.91% Muslim; 2.73% other religion and 20.9% undefined.
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Mandatory Training


All staff are expected to undertake mandatory training to ensure that we are safe, legal and fulfilling our 
statutory responsibilities. Over 2014/15 staff completed the following mandatory training:


Course Compliance rate (by 05/03/15)
Information Governance 71.03%


Fire Awareness 67.92%


PREVENT safeguarding course 63.27%(to be undertaken over 2 years)


Key Skills for Managers 86.96% (of managers)


Health Chats 58.82% (to be undertaken over 2 years)


Duty to Reduce Inequalities


The CCG has a legal duty under the Equality 
Act (2010) to ensure that when carrying out 
its functions it gives due regard to reducing 
inequalities between different patient groups in 
terms of their ability to access services and their 
health outcomes.


Over the past year a number of projects have been 
undertaken to target resources and information 
at those populations with the greatest need and 
reduce inequalities in access to commissioned 
services:


• All GP Practices were given free access to Skype 
interpretation for sign language users


• The CCG extended access to the Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services from 16-18 
years 


• The CCG took part in the Deaf Health 
Champions project and was used as a 
best practice case study for their national 
conference


• An integrated health and social care team was 
piloted in Marple and Werneth to support 
people with multiple, complex care needs


• Care Plans were created for around 4,500 
people with multiple healthcare needs to better 
manage their conditions (2% of over 18s); 


• An End of Life Care pilot successfully tripled 
the percentage of patients (from 30-90%) who 
were able to die in the place of their choosing; 


• The CCG increased local access to IAPT services 
from just 8% to the national standard of 15% 


• Equality Impact Assessments were undertaken 
on new projects, including health apps and 
online patient services


• The CCG undertook tailored campaigns to 
promote flu vaccines for pregnant women, 
children, older people and ‘at risk’ groups 
of people with long-term conditions and 
disabilities


• A specialist dementia nurse was recruited for 
end of life care services


• A new healthcare app was launched, providing 
information in a more accessible format for 
deaf, hard of hearing and young people.


Equality disclosures:
Each year the CCG produces equality report and 
publishes information on the breakdown of our 
workforce by protected characteristics, as defined 
in the Equality Act 2010. For a full break down 
of our workforce and our equality & diversity 
achievements, go to: http://stockportccg.org/
equality-diversity/public-sector-equality-duty/
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Information Governance


In the NHS, information is a vital yet potentially 
vulnerable asset, both in terms of the clinical 
management of individual patients and the 
efficient commissioning and management of 
services and resources. 


As an evidence-based organisation, NHS Stockport 
CCG is committed to ensuring that patient and 
employee data is safeguarded and used within 
the parameters of national legislation to improve 
patient care. 


By the 31st March 2015 over 71.03% of staff 
had successfully completed their mandatory 
Information Governance training. In addition, staff 
were kept informed about their responsibilities 
through regular briefings from the Chief 
Operating Officer and updates at team meetings.


Each year the CCG assesses its progress through 
the NHS’s Information Governance Toolkit. NHS 
Stockport CCG is happy to report that it meets 
level 2 in all areas of the Toolkit, that standard 
required by all NHS organisations. To view our 
progress, go to: https://nww.igt.hscic.gov.uk/ 
 
Disclosure of personal data related incidents:
In 2014/15 there were no incidents involving data 
loss or confidentiality breaches. 


Health and safety 


The CCG has 7 appointed first aiders and 7 fire 
wardens, all of whom have been fully trained. In 
addition, the CCG trained 21 employees in the 
use of defibrillators.


99% of CCG staff have successfully passed their 
mandatory health & safety training and over 
half of the CCG had undertaken fire awareness 
training by the start of March 2015. Completion 
of mandatory training is now embedded in the 
CCG’s pay progression policy.


No accidents at work were reported over 2014-15.


Quality Improvement


As part of the CCG’s commitment to Quality 
improvement, around a third of the CCG’s 
employees undertook AQUA’s 5 day quality 
improvement course. Learning from this training 
has been used to develop the CCG’s planning 
guidance, ensuring that our Strategic and 
Operational plans reflect our values of continuous 
improvement and intelligence-led decision making.
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Financial Performance


Overview


The following summary financial statements set 
out the financial performance of the CCG during 
the 2014-15 financial year.  A complete set of 
financial statements are provided within the  
annual accounts section of this document.


The CCG are pleased to report that all of it’s 
statutory financial duties in 2014-15 have been 
achieved.


The CCG has:
• Achieved operational financial balance and 


reported a revenue surplus of £4.28 million 
(carried forward for investment in future years)


• Spent £6.22 million on administration 
costs which is £1.21 million less than the 
administration allowance of £7.43 million


Analysis of our Funding and 
Expenditure


The CCG received £363.93 million of 
parliamentary revenue funding and £1.02 million 
of additional income in 2014-15. The CCG carried 
£4.28 million of this forward for future year 
investment in healthcare services and spent the 
remaining £360.67 million as follows:


‘Healthcare’ represents the cost of contracts with 
hospitals to provide services for the residents in 
the community. Examples of these services are 
accident and emergency, maternity, mental health 
and general and acute (hospital) services. Also 
included are costs for community healthcare. This 
is the cost of the services provided in a community 
setting. Examples of these services are district 
nursing, physiotherapy and community clinics. 


It also includes the cost of providing long-term 
packages of care for people at home and in 
nursing and residential homes.


‘Primary care’ costs mainly represent the cost of 
drugs prescribed by GPs (£47.5 million). 


They also include other services commissioned 
from GPs and primary care contractors such as GP 
out of hours service.


‘Other programme’ mainly consists of services 
provided under partnership arrangements with 
Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council (£4.17 
million) and non-admistrative estates costs (£1.02 
million).


‘Administration’ is the expenditure incurred 
that is not a direct payment for the provision of 
healthcare services described above and includes 
pay cost for administration staff, associated non-
pay costs and accommodation costs. 


By understanding the needs of its community, 
the CCG strives to obtain high quality and value 
services. The CCG also ensures the management 
of those contracts throughout the lifecycle of a 
service is of the highest possible standard.


The following summary statements show the key 
financials for the CCG. 
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2015


2014-15 2013-14
£000 £000


Total Income and Expenditure


Employee benefits 4,691 4,200


(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 355,857 341,974


Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (896) (346)


Net operating expenditure before interest 359,652 345,828


The Statement of Financial Position provides a snapshot of the CCG’s assets and liabilities as at 31st 
March 2015.


Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015


31 March 2015 31 March 2014


£000 £000


Non-current assets:


Property, plant and equipment 14 18


Total non-current assets 14 18
Current assets:
Trade and other receivables 1,363 721


Cash and cash equivalents 43 56


Total current assets 1,406 777
Total assets 1,420 795
Trade and other payables (20,923) (18,975)


Provisions (883) (438)


Total current liabilities (21,806) (19,413)
Non-Current Assets plus/less Net 
Current Assets/Liabilities


(20,386) (18,618)


Total non-current liabilities 0 0
Assets less Liabilities (20,386) (18,618)
Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity
General fund (20,386) (18,618)


Total taxpayers' equity: (20,386) (18,618)
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Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended 31 March 2015


Total reserves


£000


Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15
Balance at 1 April 2014 (18,618)
Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’  
equity for 2014-15
Net operating expenditure for the financial year (359,652)


Total revaluations against revaluation reserve 0
Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the 
Financial  Year


(378,270)


Net funding 357,884


Balance at 31 March 2015 (20,386)


The statement reflects gains or losses that have not been reflected in the Operating Cost Statement.


Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2015


2014-15 2013-14
£000 £000


Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net operating expenditure for the financial year (359,652) (345,828)


Depreciation and amortisation 4 5


(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables (642) (721)


Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 1,947 18,975


Provisions utilised (106) 0


Increase/(decrease) in provisions 551 438


Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating 
Activities


(357,898) (327,131)


Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities 0 0
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing (357,898) (327,131)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Grant in Aid Funding Received 357,885 327,187


Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities 357,885 327,187
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (13) 56
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the 
Financial Year


56 0


Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) 
at the End of the Financial Year


43 56


This statement explains the movements in cash balances during the financial year.
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Better Payment Practice Code
The Better Payment Practice Code is a payment initiative developed by Government with the Institute of 
Credit Management (ICM) to tackle the issue of late payment and help small businesses. The target is to 
pay all relevant creditors within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice unless other payment terms 
have been agreed with the supplier. 


The Public Sector Payment Policy (PSPP) sets a target of 95% compliance against the BPPC for all public 
sector bodies. The table below demonstrates the CCG’s compliance against the BPPC for both NHS and 
non-NHS trade creditors.


2014-15 2013-14


Non-NHS Payables Number £000s Number £000s


Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the 
year


11,695 43,184  10,092  38,374 


Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within 
target


11,428 42,304  9,961  37,802 


Percentage of Non-NHS trade 
invoices paid within target


97.72% 97.96% 98.70% 98.51%


2014-15 2013-14


NHS Payables: CCG Number £000s Number £000s
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year  2,559  262,229  2,090  248,062 


Total NHS trade invoices paid within 
target


 2,463  261,849  2,070  246,338 


Percentage of CCG Non-NHS trade 
invoice paid within target 96.25% 99.86% 99.04% 99.31%


Prompt Payment Code
The CCG is signed up to the prompt payment code.


Statutory Basis
The annual accounts for the year ended 31 March 2015 have been prepared by the CCG under 
section 17 of schedule 1A of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) in the form which 
the Secretary of State has, with the approval of the Treasury, directed.


The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) requires the CCG to produce its Annual 
Accounts in the form and have the content as laid down in the Government Financial Reporting 
Manual for the relevant financial year, taking account of the application guidance contained in the 
Department of Health Group Manual for Accounts for the relevant financial year, and CCG specific 
application guidance issued by NHS England.
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Sustainability
The CCG has adopted a Sustainability Policy 
which recognises its obligations as a major local 
employer. The CCG recognise that the decisions 
it takes on a daily basis have a major impact 
on its staff, on the local economy, and on the 
environment. This policy uses as its foundation  
the Good Corporate Citizenship Assessment 
Model and therefore it looks at ten areas where 
the organisation can improve sustainability: 
energy and carbon management, procurement 
and food, low carbon travel, transport and access, 
water, waste, the estate, corporate citizenship 
(organisation and workforce development), 
working with partners to reduce environmental 
impact, governance, commissioning and 
procurements (buying green), and finance.


The policy sets out some practical steps which 
the CCG can take to improve its work on 
sustainability. These include moving towards 
being a paper-lite working environment to 
reduce printing and paper costs, supporting staff 
who wish to reduce their journeying by private 
car by providing subsidised public transport 
passes and by support ‘cycle to work’ schemes. 
When considering the possible locations for 
commissioned services the CCG will take  
account of their accessibility by public transport.
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Meet the
Governing Body


Jane Crombleholme – Lay Chair
I am lay Chair of the Governing Body for NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group. I have 
a long record of public service serving as an NHS Non Executive Director on several NHS trusts 
since 1999. I have been a Foundation Trust governor, Chair of a local charity, Chair of my 
local primary school and am currently a School Governor at my children’s High School.
 
In my professional life, I am Head of Executive Education at Manchester Business School, part 
of the University of Manchester where I have worked for 17 years.
 
When I think about why I do this job it is because I love the NHS. I know it is not perfect but 
I want to do my bit to make sure that the service we all pay for as tax-payers is high-quality, 


responsive and fit for purpose. I feel that this is best done locally - Stockport is where I was born and live along with 
a very large extended family that range from 5 to 85 years old. Stockport’s NHS and wider public services have got 
to be good enough for all of us and I want to do my bit to make that happen.


Dr Ranjit Gill, Chief Clinical Officer
I’ve been a GP in Stockport since 1991. Stockport Medical Group, where I work as a GP, 
has seen its registered population live longer and healthier lives in the last 24 years, but the 
consultation rate per patient has grown from 4 per year to 9 per year in that time.  In that 
time Stockport’s NHS has not adapted to the changing needs of the of Stockport’s people fast 
enough. Our population needs to have access to the advances in health and social care which 
can prevent ill health and relapse. Only by helping people to look after themselves better, can 
we together make Stockport’s health outcomes as good as they can be.


I’ve in the past led the creation of the Stockport GP Out of Hours Service, been involved in 
aspects of NHS commissioning since 2001, and now I’m helping shape Devolution for Greater 


Manchester to make sure we systematically address the health needs of Greater Manchester’s people.


Being a practicing doctor in today’s NHS remains extremely rewarding, but is becoming increasingly intense. Many 
staff working in the NHS feel the same. Only by looking after them properly too, can we realise everything we want 
for the people of Stockport.


The Governing Body has been delegated by its council of GP members the power to conduct the overall 
management of the CCG. They meet regularly to conduct their formal business. The papers and minutes of these 
meetings are published on the CCG website www.stockportccg.org. 


Members of the public or other interested parties are invited to notify attendance in advance either by telephoning 
or emailing the CCG reception on 0161 426 9900 or ccg.reception@nhs.net. 


The Governing Body is mainly made up of local GPs and includes clinical representatives such as a nurse, public 
health specialist and hospital consultant. There are also two lay representatives including a lay member chair and a 
lay finance member. 
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Dr Lydia Harden (From January 2015)
I am the GP Locality Chair for Stepping Hill & Victoria. I am a member of the Governing 
Body for NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group and the Clinical Policy Committee.  I 
currently work as a GP at Adswood Road Surgery in Stockport. Prior to this during my training 
I worked as a junior doctor at Stepping Hill Hospital. I have a special interest in Child Heath, 
Women’s health and Cancer care.


As a GP who has lived in Stockport throughout my childhood and professional life, I am 
passionate about the future of the NHS in Stockport and deeply committed to ensuring the 
quality of services meets the needs of our community in the coming years despite the current 
challenges. 


John Greenough
John Greenough is the lay member lead for finance and audit. He also leads on remuneration 
and conflict of interest matters. He is the Chair of the Remuneration Committee and Audit 
Committee. John has an extensive experience in finance and was previously a partner at 
KPMG.


Gaynor Mullins
I am Chief Operating Officer which is the most senior manager of the CCG and I am 
responsible for ensuring that arrangements are in place so that the CCG can successfully 
deliver its business objectives. I ensure that effective management systems are in place and 
are responsible for the daily operations of the CCG and its staff.


Karen Richardson
I am the nurse member on the Governing Body. I contribute a nursing view on patient care 
and health and care issues. I am the Chair of the Quality & Provider management committee 
for the CCG. I am committed to the NHS and Nursing having worked for many years in 
frontline services.  I believe all people should have access to high quality health care. I hope 
my experience and expertise, alongside my passion and commitment can help influence 
and shape the health care system across Stockport , so the people of Stockport  have equal 
access to health care and  know their needs will be met with compassion, care, courage, 
commitment , communication and competence.


Dr Vicci Owen Smith, Director of Public Health
I am the Clinical Director for Public Health for NHS Stockport CCG and I also work as a 
Deputy Director of Public Health for Stockport. Before working in Public Health, I was a GP  
in Stockport. 


I am passionate about improving inequalities in health across Stockport, in enthusing people 
about the considerable health and well-being benefits of incorporating physical activity into 
their day to day lives, of drinking and eating healthily as well as not smoking.
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Dr Cath Briggs


I am Clinical Director for Quality and Provider Management.  This means that I take a clinical 
lead on looking at quality of services in local hospitals and other places where people receive 
care in Stockport.  I chair a number of Committees, and am especially involved in ensuring 
that people receive high quality emergency and planned treatments in a timely manner and 
in line with national targets.  I am also actively involved, from a clinical perspective, in the 
‘Stockport Together’ transformation work.


I have a deep passion for the NHS and am proud to work within this as a GP partner at 
Bracondale Medical Centre in Heaviley in Stockport.  The work I do in the CCG enables me 
to take a much broader view of the care we deliver at the practice and hopefully means that 


patients receive better care as a result.  I have previously worked as a GP with Special interest in Urology and keep 
up this interest by being a member of the Urology Cancer Pathway Board for Greater Manchester.


I also live in Stockport and have 2 children who are growing up quickly.  I am keen that the NHS in Stockport and 
nationally continues to deliver improvements in patient care in a sustainable way that guarantees that all Stockport 
residents receive high quality care for the foreseeable future.’


Dr Viren Mehta
Dr Viren Mehta is the Clinical Director on the Governing Body for GP member development. 
He is also a GP at a Medical Practice in Cheadle. He is responsible for the engagement and 
development of GP member practices of the CCG.


Gary Jones
Gary Jones is the Chief Finance Officer. He is the governing body‘s professional expert on 
finance who ensures the effective, efficient and economic use of the CCG budget. Gary is 
also responsible for the day to day financial management of the CCG and its strategy. 


Dr Peter Carne
I am the GP locality chair for Cheadle and Bramhall, a member of the Governing Body and 
the Remuneration committee.


I have been a GP partner at Gatley Medical Centre since 1992 and Locality Chair for Cheadle 
& Bramhall since 2013. I also work regular sessions for Mastercall, the local out-of-hours GP 
service. Prior to taking up my CCG Locality Chair role I worked at St Ann’s Hospice for 19 
years. I feel that my wealth of primary care experience can contribute to an improvement in 
cost-effective patient care in Stockport.
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Dr Deborah Kendall (From March 2015)
Dr Deborah Kendall is the secondary care consultant for the Governing Body. She is a 
consultant paediatrician at Lancashire Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (Royal  
Preston Hospital).


Dr Ameer Aldabbagh (Up to October 2014)
Dr Ameer Aldabbagh is the GP locality chair for Stepping Hill & Victoria. He is a member of 
the Governing Body and the Quality & Provider management committee. He has a special 
interest in child health, general medicine, minor surgery and palliative care. 


Dr Andy Johnson
Dr Andy Johnson is the GP locality chair for the Marple & Werneth locality committee. He is 
a member of the Governing Body and the Audit committee and is the clinical cancer lead for 
the CCG. Andy is a GP at Marple Cottage surgery. 


Directors


Tim Ryley


Director of Strategic 
Planning & Performance


Diane Jones


Director of Service 
Reform


Roger Roberts


Director of GP Member 
Development


Mark Chidgey


Director of Quality & 
Provider Management
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Dr Jaweeda Idoo (Up to July 2014)
Dr Jaweeda Idoo was the Clinical Director on the Governing Body for Service Transformation. 
She is also a local GP in Woodley.


Dr Sasha Johari (Up to November 2014)
Dr Sasha Johari is the Vice Chair of the Governing Body and GP locality chair for Heatons and 
Tame Valley. He is a GP at Park View Group Practice in Reddish and the clincial lead for the 
CCG on maternity and paediatrics.
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Dr Mary Ryan (Up to December 2014)
Dr Mary Ryan is the secondary care doctor who sits on the Governing Body. Mary brings 
to the governing body an understanding of patient care in a hospital setting. Mary is a 
consultant and service group lead for Paediatric Emergency Medicine at Alder Hey Childrens 
Hospital.


Dr James Higgins (From February 2014)
I am the GP locality chair for Heatons and Tame Valley and a member of the Governing Body.


Born and brought up around South Manchester, I left to study medicine at the University of 
Birmingham, graduating in 2004. After completing my foundation programme in Birmingham 
I spent a year working in Auckland, New Zealand before returning to my home town to 
commence my GP training. Following completion of this in 2010, I took up my current post 
as a GP partner at Brinnington Surgery where I take a lead role within the practice for cancer 
care, mental health and dementia and safeguarding children. I also have a role in training 
junior doctors within the practice. 


I consider myself to be in a very privileged position in my CCG role as it gives me the 
opportunity to help shape services within Stockport using my clinical experience and insight to implement changes 
that are practical, achievable and most importantly, that will make a real difference to the health of the patients we 
serve.
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GP Member Representatives


Locality List size 
(Jun14)


Number 
of votes 
allocated 
to member


CHEADLE HULME HEALTH CTR 2 C&B Ruth Seabrook 12377 5


BRAMHALL HEALTH CENTRE C&B Javid Ali 13107 6


BRAMHALL PARK MEDICAL CTR C&B Alexander Bayes 13718 6


CHEADLE MEDICAL PRACTICE C&B Viren Mehta 11629 5


HEALD GREEN HEALTH CENTRE 2 C&B Andy Wright 6394 3


GATLEY MEDICAL CENTRE C&B Peter Carne 8947 4


CHEADLE HULME HEALTH CTR 1 C&B Alison Shipston 10758 5


THE VILLAGE SURGERY C&B Daniel Goldspink 4939 2


HEALD GREEN HEALTH CENTRE 1 C&B Kevin Dean 6169 3


BRINNINGTON HEALTH CENTRE 1 H&TV Tom Howling 4345 2


HEATON MOOR MEDICAL CENTRE H&TV Rebecca Locke 10094 5


FAMILY SURGERY H&TV Ian Dickie 7547 4


HEATON MERSEY MED.PRACT. H&TV Jeremy Wynn 7861 4


HEATON NORRIS HEALTH CTR. 2 H&TV Sayima Iqbal 1534 1


HEATON NORRIS HEALTH CTR. 1 H&TV Kathryn Maguire 6583 3


PARK VIEW GROUP PRACTICE H&TV Sasha Johari 7937 4


HEATON MOOR MEDICAL CTR. 1 H&TV John Swarbrick 12732 6


EASTHOLME SURGERY H&TV Joanne Herd 4722 2


BRINNINGTON HEALTH CENTRE 2 H&TV Alan Gilman 4319 2


THE SURGERY 1 H&TV Hany Azmy 1796 1


SOUTH REDDISH MEDICAL CTR 2 H&TV Geeta Gupta 3191 2


VERNON PARK SURGERY
H&TV


Dr Suvajit 
Chatterjee


1518 1


SOUTH REDDISH MEDICAL CTR 1 H&TV Stella Cole 3815 2


MARPLE BRIDGE SURGERY M&W Morag Needham 6415 3


MARPLE COTTAGE SURGERY M&W Andrew Johnson 6742 3


WOODLEY HEALTH CENTRE 2 M&W Imran Khan 3618 2


CHADSFIELD MEDICAL PRACTICE
M&W


Simon 
Woodworth


6767 3


ALVANLEY FAMILY PRACTICE M&W Mark Gallagher 4412 2


MARPLE MEDICAL PRACTICE M&W Greg Carter 7543 4


BREDBURY MEDICAL CENTRE
M&W


Michael 
Armstrong


4826 2


THE GUYWOOD PRACTICE M&W Raina Patel 2943 2


WOODLEY HEALTH CENTRE 1  Monica Chanda


HIGH LANE MEDICAL CENTRE
M&W


Robert 
Mathewson


5239 3


WOODLEY HEALTH CENTRE M&W Abdul Ghafoor 2096 1
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Locality List size 
(Jun14)


Number 
of votes 
allocated 
to member


THE ARCHWAYS SURGERY M&W Graham Parker 5947 3


MANOR MEDICAL PRACTICE SH&V Jonathan Owen 9027 4


BEECH HOUSE MEDICAL PRACT SH&V Phil Allan 8840 4


CARITAS GENERAL PRACTICE PARTNERSHIP SH&V Abigail Webster 13755 6


ADSHALL ROAD MEDICAL PRAC SH&V David Gilbert 4992 2


BRACONDALE MEDICAL CENTRE
SH&V


Catherine Briggs / 
Adam Firth


4836 2


CALE GREEN SURGERY SH&V Rachel Tomalin 3612 2


LOWFIELD SURGERY SH&V Heather Procter 2848 2


SPRINGFIELD SURGERY
SH&V


Rosalind Deering / 
Ameer Aldabbagh


4603 2


ADSWOOD ROAD SURGERY SH&V Jill Jeffs 4217 2


THE SURGERY 3 SH&V Abdul Ghafoor 1751 1


HAIDER MEDICAL CENTRE SH&V Saqib Rafique 1763 1


STOCKPORT MEDICAL GROUP SH&V Naomi Lalloo 11890 5


LITTLE MOOR SURGERY SH&V Ben Duncan 4982 2


DR H LLOYD'S PRACTICE SH&V Hazem Lloyd 1845 1


C&B – Cheadle and Bramhall
H&TV – Heatons and Tame Valley
SH&V – Stepping Hill and Victoria
M&W – Marple and Werneth
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Committees
Governing Body committees which operated 
during the financial year were;


Audit Committee
• John Greenough (Chair) – Lay Member
• Bernard Braiden – Member
• David Swift – Member
• Dr Andy Johnson - Locality Council Chair & 


Clinical Lead for Cancer


Remuneration Committee
• John Greenough (Chair) – Lay Member
• Jane Crombleholme - Lay Member, Chair of 


NHS Stockport CCG
• Gaynor Mullins – Chief Operating Officer
• Gary Jones – Chief Finance Officer
• Peter Carne - GP Locality Council Chair
• Mary Ryan (to December 2014) - Secondary 


Care Doctor


Clinical Policy Committee
• Dr Lydia Hardern (Chair from March 2015) - 


Locality Council Chair
• Jane Crombleholme - Lay Member, Chair of 


NHS Stockport CCG
• Peter Marks - Community Pharmacist, Chair of 


LPC
• Mike Lappin – Healthwatch Representative
• Dr Sasha Johari (to November 2014) - Locality 


Council Chair
• Mark Chidgey - Director of Quality & Provider 


Management 
• Roger Roberts - Director of General Practice 


Development
• Liz Bailey (from July 2014) - Medicines 


Optimisation Lead
• Sarah Williamson - Performance Manger
• Dr Mary Ryan (to December 2014) - Secondary 


Care Doctor
• Dr Peter Carne (from January - March 2015) - 


GP Locality Chair


Quality and Provider Management 
Committee
• Karen Richardson (Chair) - Nurse Member
• Dr Cath Briggs - Clinical Director for Quality & 


Provider Management 
• Dr Vicci Owen-Smith - Clinical Director of 


Public Health
• Jane Crombleholme - Lay Member, Chair of 


NHS Stockport CCG


• Dr Ameer Aldabbagh (to October 2014) - 
Locality Council Chair


• Susan Parker - Allied Health Professional
• Tony Stokes - Healthwatch Representative
• Mark Chidgey - Director of Quality & Provider 


Management
• Gillian Miller – Senior Quality & 


Commissioning Manager
• Sue Gaskell – Safeguarding Lead Nurse
• Dr James Higgins (from February 2014 – 


Locality Council Chair


Quality Innovation Productivity 
Prevention (QIPP) Committee


The QIPP committee was established in September 
2014


• John Greenough (Chair) – Lay Member  
• Gaynor Mullins – Chief Operating Officer
• Peter Carne - Locality Council Chair
• Ranjit Gill - Accountable Officer,
• Gary Jones - Chief Finance Officer
• Viren Metha - Clinical Director for Primary 


Care Development 
• Mark Chidgey - Director of Quality & Provider 


Management
• Tim Ryley - Director of Strategic Planning


A description of the committee’s role and 
responsibilities is provided within the Governance 
Statement.


The terms of reference of committees are  
available on the CCG website at:  
http://stockportccg.org/publications/


Pension Liabilities
Past and present employees are covered by the 
provisions of the NHS pension scheme. Details of 
the benefits payable under these provisions can  
be found on the NHS Pensions website at  
www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/Pensions.


The pension cost accounting policy is disclosed 
in Note 4.5 of the annual accounts and the 
remuneration report details the pension benefits 
received by senior managers in the financial year.
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Members Interests
The Governing Body register of interests is 
available on the CCG website at:  
http://stockportccg.org/wp-content/
uploads/2012/01/Register-of-Interests-
CCG-2014-15.pdf


External Audit
Grant Thornton acts as the CCG’s external 
auditor and carries out the statutory audit and 
a Value for Money (VfM) conclusion. The VfM 
conclusion requires auditors to provide an opinion 
on whether the CCG has put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources. 


The cost of the audit services undertaken in 2014-
15 was £90k (incl VAT). 


Sickness Absence Data
The CCG sickness absence data is provided in note 
4.3 of the Annual Accounts.


Cost Allocation and 
Setting of Charges for 
Information
The CCG certifies that it has complied with HM 
Treasury’s guidance on cost allocation and the 
setting of charges for information.


Disclosure of Personal 
Data Related Incidents
There were no incidents involving data loss or 
confidentiality breaches at the CCG during the 
financial year.


Employee Consultation
The CCG recognises that its employees are its 
main asset. 


The CCG held a ‘Start of Year’ conference in April 
2014 for staff. In response to staff feedback a 
‘mid-year update’ was also held to provide an 
update on progress throughout the year and to 
engage staff on the future health and social care 
transformation work. All employees attended and 
were provided with information on vision and 
direction, given the opportunity to reflect on their 
contribution to CCG priorities and network with 
colleagues. 


During the Healthier Together consultation 
sessions were held for CCG staff to understand 
more about the issues and questions within the 
consultation. Other lunchtime briefings were held 
for staff to provide staff with opportunities to find 
out more or give their views on certain aspects of 
the CCG work.


A bi-monthly staff survey is open to all staff and 
the management team use the responses within 
in this to respond to any employee concerns or 
queries. There is also an established staff forum 
that represent the views of the CCG teams on key 
areas, such as, new policies, staff welllbeing and 
communication. A director attends the staff forum 
to ensure that the views are reflected back to the 
management team.


Equality Disclosures
Each year the CCG produces an equality report 
and publishes information on the breakdown of its 
workforce by protected characteristics, as defined 
in the Equality Act 2010. For a full break down of 
the CCG workforce and its equality and diversity 
achievements can be found at:  
http://stockportccg.org/=equality-diversity/
public-sector-equality-duty/


Health & Safety 


The CCG had no health and safety related 
incidents during the financial year.







P A G E  3 2


R
es


o
u


rc
es


, 
p


ri
n


ci
p


al
 r


is
ks


 a
n


d
 u


n
ce


rt
ai


n
ti


es
 in


 r
el


at
io


n
sh


ip
s 


M
em


b
ers rep


o
rt


Fraud 


The CCG is committed to reducing fraud, bribery 
and corruption in the NHS and will seek the 
appropriate disciplinary, regulatory, civil and 
criminal sanctions against fraudsters and where 
possible will attempt to recover losses.


The CCG has a local Anti-fraud, Bribery and 
Corruption Policy which has been produced by an 
Anti-Fraud Specialist (AFS), and is a guide for all 
employees on anti-fraud work within the NHS. All 
genuine suspicions of fraud and corruption can be 
reported to the AFS or through the NHS Fraud and 
Corruption Reporting Line (FCRL). 


Each year an anti-fraud work plan is developed 
based on the following four key principles:
• Strategic governance: The CCG ensures that 


anti-crime measures are embedded at all levels 
across the organisation. 


• Inform and involve: The CCG raises awareness 
of crime risks against the NHS, and work with 
NHS staff and the public to publicise the risks 
and effects of crime against the NHS.


• Prevent and deter: The CCG discourages 
individuals who may be tempted to commit 
crime against the NHS and ensure that 
opportunities for crime to occur are minimised.


• Hold to account: The CCG proactively detects 
fraud in identified risk areas and ensures that 
all suspicions of fraud are investigated in a 
timely and professional manner and that all 
appropriate sanctions and redress actions are 
applied.


Emergency 
Preparedness
The CCG certify that the CCG has incident 
response plans in place, which are fully compliant 
with the NHS England Emergency Preparedness 
Framework 2013. 


The CCG regularly reviews and makes 
improvements to its major incident plan and has 
a programme for regularly testing this plan, the 
results of which are reported to the Governing 
Body.


Principles for Remedy
The CCG has fully adopted the six principles for 
remedy contained within the Parliamentary & 
Health Service Ombudsman’s Report from 2010 
within its Complaints Policy and Procedures. 


The CCG aims to secure suitable and proportionate 
remedies for complainants whose complaints are 
upheld and, where appropriate, for others who 
have suffered injustice or hardship as a result of 
the same maladministration or poor service. The 
CCG aim to be fair and to take responsibility, to 
acknowledge failures and apologise for them, 
to make amends, and to use the opportunity to 
improve our commissioned services.


Exit Packages and 
Severance Payments
The CCG did not agree any exit packages in the 
financial year.


Off-payroll 
Engagements
Following the Review of Tax Arrangements of 
Public Sector Appointees published by the Chief 
Secretary to the Treasury on 23rd May 2012, the 
CCG must publish information on their highly paid 
and or senior manager’s off-payroll engagements.


For all off-payroll engagements as of the 31st 
March 2015, for more than £220.00 per day and 
that last longer than six months are as follows:


The number that have existed Number
Number of existing engagements as of 
31 March 2015


1


Of which the number that have existed:


•  For less than one year at the time of 
reporting


0


•  For between one and two years at 
the time of reporting


1


•  For between two and three years at 
time of reporting


0


•  For between three and four years at 
time of reporting


0


•  For four or more years at time of 
reporting


0
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The existing off-payroll engagement has 
been subject to a risk based assessment as 
to whether assurance is required that the 
individual is paying the correct amount of tax 
and, where necessary, that assurance has been 
sought.


For all new off-payroll engagements as of the 
31st March 2015, for more than £220.00 per 
day and that last longer than six months are as 
follows:


Number
Number of new engagements, or those 
that reached six months in duration, 
between 1 April 2014 and 31 March 
2015


2


Number of the above which include 
contractual clauses giving the clinical 
commissioning group the right to 
request assurance in relation to Income 
Tax and National Insurance obligations


0


Number for whom assurance has been 
requested 


0


Of which, the number:


•  For whom assurance has been 
received


0


•  For whom assurance has not been 
received             


0


•  That have been terminated as a result 
of assurance not being received


0


There were 2 cases where the CCG engaged an 
individual without including contractual clauses 
allowing it to seek assurances as to their tax 
obligations. The CCG has reviewed these 2 
cases and have now re-engaged through a 
contract for service on the CCG payroll.


The CCG is aware of the requirement to review 
the contractual status of all remaining off-
payroll engagements with a view to putting 
them on the payroll or re-engaging them on 
revised contract terms to enable the right to 
request assurance in relation to income tax and 
national insurance obligations.


Number
Number of off-payroll engagements 
of Governing Body members, and or 
senior officials with significant financial 
responsibility, during the financial  year


4


Number of individuals that have been 
deemed “governing Body members, 
and or senior officials with significant 
financial responsibility, during the 
financial year, including both on-payroll 
and off-payroll engagements 


21


As at 31st March 2015 all Governing Body and 
or Senior Managers with significant financial 
responsibility are engaged and remunerated via 
on-payroll arrangements.


Statement of Disclosure 
to Auditors
Each individual who is a member of the Governing 
Body at the time the Members’ Report is approved 
confirms:


• So far as the member is aware, that there is no 
relevant audit information of which the CCG’s 
external auditor is unaware; and,


• That the member has taken all the steps that 
they ought to have taken as a member in 
order to make them self-aware of any relevant 
audit information and to establish that the 
clinical commissioning group’s auditor is aware 
of that information.


Dr Ranjit Gill
Accountable Officer
27 May 2015
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Remuneration
Report
The CCG Remuneration Committee (the 
Committee) has been established in accordance 
with the CCG’s constitution, standing orders and 
scheme of delegation. 


The Committee, which is accountable to the 
CCG’s Governing Body makes recommendations 
to the Governing Body on determinations about 
the remuneration, fees and other allowances for 
employees and for people who provide services 
to the group and on determinations about 
allowances under any pension scheme that the 
group may establish as an alternative to the 
NHS pension scheme. The Governing Body has 
approved and keeps under review the terms of 
reference for the Committee, which includes 
information on the membership. 


Committee membership is determined by the 
Remuneration Committee Terms of Reference 
which are approved by the Governing Body. 
It is only the members of the Committee who 
have the right to attend the meetings of the 
Committee. Other individuals such as the 


Accountable Officer, Human Resources, Staff Side 
or LMC representatives and external advisers may 
be invited to attend for all or part of any meeting 
as and when appropriate. No individual should 
be in attendance for discussions or decisions 
concerning their own remuneration and terms of 
service.


The Chair of the Remuneration Committee, John 
Greenough, is the lay member of the Governing 
Body who leads on audit, remuneration and 
conflict of interest matters.


The other members of the Remuneration 
Committee are:


• Dr Peter Carne, Locality Council Chair and 
Vice-Chair of Remuneration Committee


• Jane Crombleholme, Lay Member for Patient 
and Public Participation,


• Gaynor Mullins, Chief Operating Officer
• Gary Jones, Chief Finance Officer


The attendance of the Remuneration Committee members are detailed in the table below: 


 Measure of compliance   1/4/14 9/6/14 17/9/14 27/11/14 17/2/15 19/3/15
J Greenough P P A P P P


J Crombleholme A P P P P A


G Mullins P P P P A P


G Jones P P P P P P


P Carne A A P(D) A A A


M Ryan (to Dec 14) P A A A - -


P = Present, P(D) = Deputising, A= Absent, - = not in post
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Policy on Remuneration 
of Senior Managers
The CCG is required to set the remuneration for 
all of the members of the Governing Body and for 
all employees.


The following guidance was used to determine 
the pay and conditions of employment of its 
employees


• Clinical Commissioning Groups: Remuneration 
guidance for Chief Officers (where the senior 
manager also undertakes the Accountable 
Officer role) and Chief Finance Officers


• HayGroup, CCG Guidance on Remuneration 
commissioned by North West Primary Care 
Trusts in December 2012


• Agenda for Change terms and conditions. 


The decisions of the recommendations of 
the remuneration committee are detailed 
within the Remuneration committee which 
is available at: http://stockportccg.org/wp-
content/uploads/2012/01/NHS-Stockport-
CCGRemuneration-2013-14.pdf


Senior Manager 
Performance Related Pay
No performance-related pay was paid in 2014-15.


Policy on Senior 
Manager Contracts
The composition of the Governing Body and 
therefore the number of senior managers is set 
out in the constitution of the CCG. The duration 
of contract, notice period and any termination 
payments are detailed within the organisations 
standing orders which form part of the CCG’s 
constitution which is available at:  
http://stockportccg.org/wp-content/
uploads/2012/01/NHS-Stockport-CCG-
constitution-March-2015.docx
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Senior Manager Service Contracts
For each member of the Governing Body who served during the financial year 2014-15, details of service 
contract, remuneration and pension benefits are shown in the tables below.


Name
Role


Date of 
contract


Unexpired term 
at 31.03.15


Notice 
period


Jane Crombleholme Chair / Lay Member 01.04.13 1 year Six months


John Greenough Lay Member 01.04.13 1 year Three months


Dr Ranjit Gill Chief Clinical Officer 01.04.13 3 years Six months


Gaynor Mullins
Chief Operating Officer 01.04.13


Not applicable – 
employee status


Six months


Gary Jones
Chief Finance Officer 01.04.13


Not applicable - 
employee status


Three months


Dr Cath Briggs Clinical Director 01.04.13 3 years Six months


Dr Viren Mehta Clinical Director 09.10.13 3 years 6 months Six months


Dr Jaweeda Idoo (to July 2014)
Clinical Director 01.04.13


Not applicable - 
resigned from post


-


Karen Richardson Nurse Member 01.04.13 1 year Three months


Dr Mary Ryan (to Dec 2014) Secondary Care 
Consultant


01.04.13
Not applicable - 


resigned from post
-


Dr Deborah Kendall (from March 
2015)


Secondary Care 
Consultant


01.03.15 2 years 11 months Three months


Dr Andy Johnson Locality Chair 01.04.13 1 year Three months


Dr Peter Carne Locality Chair 01.08.13 1 year 4 months Three months


Dr Sasha Johari (to Oct 2014)
Locality Chair 01.04.13


Not applicable - 
resigned from post


-


Dr Ameer Aldabbagh (to Oct 
2014)


Locality Chair 01.04.13
Not applicable - 


resigned from post
-


Dr Lydia Hardern (from Dec 
2014)


Locality Chair 17.12.14 2 years 9 months Three months


Dr James Higgins (from Jan 
2015)


Locality Chair 23.01.15 2 years 10 months Three months


In the event of early termination any payment would made in accordance to Agenda for Change terms 
and conditions.


Payments to Past Senior Managers
There were no payments made during the financial year 2014-15 to any previous Senior Manager  


Salaries and Allowances
The CCG is required to disclose the remuneration and benefits of senior managers who have held office 
during the year. 
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Senior Employees 
The CCG has made a commitment as detailed in its Constitution to disclose salaries for all senior 
employees. The definition of a senior employee is anyone with a salary of £50,000 or above if they were 
to be employed on a whole time equivalent basis.


2014-15 2013-2014


Name and title Salary


(bands of 
£5,000)
£000


Salary


(bands of 
£5,000)
£000


£000 £000
Mrs Elizabeth Bailey
Medicines Optimisation Lead 50 - 55 50 - 55


Mrs Susan Jane Brett
Head of Continuing and Complex Healthcare 50 - 55 45 - 50


Daniel William Byrne
Head of Performance Information 55 - 60 55 - 60


David Andrew Dolman
Deputy Chief Finance Officer 70 - 75 65 - 70


Mrs Gina Erlander Evans
Joint Commissioning Lead 55 - 60 55 - 60


Paul Stephen Fleming
Associate Director of IM&T 45 -50 30 - 35


Mrs Susan Gaskell
Designated Nurse for Safeguarding Children 65 - 70 65 - 70


Mrs Gillian Suzanne Miller
Deputy Director of Provider Management 50 - 55 45 - 50


Mrs Karen Moran
Senior Service Reform Manager 50 - 55 45 - 50


Stephen Michael Sewell
Portfolio Director 90 - 95 20 - 25


Dr Adam Firth
Vice - Chair of Stepping Hill and Victoria Locality Council Committee (from April 2014) 5 - 10 N/A


DR Ruth Seabrook
Vice - Chair of Cheadle and Bramhall Locality Council Committee (from January 2015)


0 - 5 N/A


Dr Simon Woodworth
Vice  - Chair of Marple and Werneth Locality Council Committee (from April 2014)
Clinical Lead for Urgent Care


5 - 10
15 - 20


N/A
10 - 15


Dr Heather Proctor
Clinical Lead for Prescribing


5 - 10 0 - 5


Susan Parker
Clinical Lead for Ophthalmology


5 - 10 0 - 5


Dr Nijabat Hussain
Clinical Lead for Mental health
Clinical Lead for Proactive Care (from April 2014)


10 - 15
20 - 25


15 - 20
N/A


Dr Karen McEwan
Cancer Lead
Clinical Lead for Planned Care (from November 2014)


15 - 20
10 - 15


15 - 20
N/A


Dr Alan Gilman
GP Lead for I.M. & T


15 - 20 5 - 10
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Payments for Loss of Office
The CCG made no payments during the financial year 2014-15 to any senior manager or other employee 
for loss of office.


Pension Benefits 
For each member of the Governing Body who served during the financial year, their pension benefits are 
shown below        


Name Real 
increase 
in 
pension 
at age 
60 
(bands 
of 
£2,500)


Real 
increase 
in 
pension 
lump 
sum at 
age 60 
(bands 
of 
£2,500)


Total 
accrued 
pension 
at age 
60 at 31 
March 
2014 
(bands 
of 
£5,000)


Lump 
sum at 
age 60 
related to 
accrued 
pension 
at 31 
March 
2014 
(bands of 
£5,000)


Cash 
equivalent 
transfer 
value at 
31 March 
2013


Cash 
equivalent 
transfer 
value at 
31 March 
2014


Real 
increase 
in cash 
equivalent 
transfer 
value
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£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Dr Ranjit Singh 
Gill


0 - 2.5 0 - 2.5 10 - 15 40 - 45 248 270 16 0


Gaynor Dawn 
Mullins


0 - 2.5 0 - 2.5 25 - 30 80 - 85 424 440 7 0


Gary Robert 
Jones


2.5 - 5.0 7.5 - 10.0 40 - 45 125 - 130 680 774 78 0


Dr Catherine 
Helen Briggs 0 - 2.5 2.5 - 5.0 15 - 20 50 - 55 221 246 21 0


Dr Jaweeda 
Idoo


2.5 - 5.0
10.0 - 


12.5
10 - 15 40 - 45 157 220 60 0


Dr Viren Mehta
5.0 - 7.5


17.5 - 
20.0


5 - 10 20 - 25 20 88 68 0


Mark Gerard 
Chidgey


0 - 2.5 5.0 - 7.5 20 - 25 65 - 70 301 346 39 0


Dr Diane Lesley 
Jones


2.5 - 5.0 7.5 - 10.0 25 - 30 80 - 85 386 454 60 0


Roger Ian 
Roberts


2.5 - 5.0 7.5 - 10.0 30 - 35 95 - 100 549 626 67 0


Timothy Patrick 
Ryley


0 - 2.5 2.5 - 5.0 10 - 15 30 - 35 160 192 28 0


As non-executive members do not receive pensionable remuneration there will be no entries in respect of 
pensions for non-executive members.


Cash Equivalent Transfer Values      
  
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme 
benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member’s accrued 
benefits and any contingent spouse’s (or other allowable beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme. 
CETVs are calculated in accordance with the Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) Regulations 
2008. 
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Real Increase in CETV  
         
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively fund-
ed by the employer. It takes account of the in-
crease in accrued pension due to inflation, contri-
butions paid by the employee (including the value 
of any benefits transferred from another scheme 
or arrangement) and uses common market valua-
tion factors for the start and end of the period. 


Pay Multiples
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the 
relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest-paid director in their organisation and the 
median remuneration of the organisation’s work-
force. 


The banded remuneration of the highest paid 
director in the CCG in the financial year 2014-15 
was £167,500 (2013-14, £162,500). This was 
4.76 times (2013-14, 4.71 times) the median re-
muneration of the workforce, which was £35,221 
(2013-14, £34,530). 


In both the 2014-15 and 2013-14 financial years 
no employees received remuneration in excess of 
the highest-paid director. Remuneration ranged 
from £12,500 to £167,500 (2013-14 £16,250 to 
£162,500) 


Total remuneration includes salary, non-
consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-
in-kind, but not severance payments. It does not 
include employer pension contributions and the 
cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.


The increase in the pay multiple is a reflection the 
2014-15 NHS pay award, whereby NHS employees 
were eligible for an annual increase of at least 
one per cent, either through contractual pay 
progression, or for staff at the top of their pay 
bands, through a non-consolidated payment.


Most staff salaries increased through incremental 
progression by amounts varying, between around 
two and five per cent. Staff who were on the top 
pay point in their pay band on or before 31 March 
2014, received a non-consolidated, non-recurrent 
payment (payable in the year 2014-15 only) worth 
one per cent of basic pay.







P A G E  4 3


Statements by the
Accountable Officer


The National Health Service Act 2006 (as 
amended) states that each Clinical Commissioning 
Group shall have an Accountable Officer and 
that Officer shall be appointed by the NHS 
Commissioning Board (NHS England).  NHS 
England has appointed the Chief Clinical Officer 
to be the Accountable Officer of the Clinical 
Commissioning Group.


The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer, 
including responsibilities for the propriety and 
regularity of the public finances for which the 
Accountable Officer is answerable, for keeping 
proper accounting records (which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 
position of the Clinical Commissioning Group and 
enable them to ensure that the accounts comply 
with the requirements of the Accounts Direction) 
and for safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning 
Group’s assets (and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud 
and other irregularities), are set out in the Clinical 
Commissioning Group Accountable Officer 
Appointment Letter.


Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as 
amended), NHS England has directed each Clinical 
Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial 
year financial statements in the form and on 
the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The 
financial statements are prepared on an accruals 
basis and must give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Clinical Commissioning Group and 
of its net expenditure, changes in taxpayers’ equity 
and cash flows for the financial year.


In preparing the financial statements, the 
Accountable Officer is required to comply with the 
requirements of the Manual for Accounts issued 
by the Department of Health and in particular to:


• Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS 
England, including the relevant accounting 
and disclosure requirements, and apply 
suitable accounting policies on a consistent 
basis;


• Make judgements and estimates on a 
reasonable basis;


• State whether applicable accounting standards 
as set out in the Manual for Accounts issued 
by the Department of Health have been 
followed, and disclose and explain any 
material departures in the financial statements; 
and,


• Prepare the financial statements on a going 
concern basis.


To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have 
properly discharged the responsibilities set out in 
my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable 
Officer Appointment Letter.


Dr Ranjit Gill
Accountable Officer
27 May 2015


Statement of Accountable Officer’s 
Responsibilities
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Introduction and 
Context
NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) was licensed from 1 April 2013 under 
provisions enacted in the Health & Social Care Act 
2012, which amended the National Health Service 
Act 2006.


As at 1 April 2013, the CCG was licensed without 
conditions.


From 1 April 2013 continuing through 2014-15 
the CCG has been responsible for meeting local 
health needs within the available budget. The 
CCG does this through the commissioning of 
local health and care services including those for 
elective hospital care, rehabilitation care, urgent 
and emergency care, most community health 
services, and mental health and learning disability 
services.


The CCG has agreed a constitution with its 
members which sets out how the organisation 
carries out its duties and makes decisions. The 
CCG is a membership organisation; all GP 
practices in Stockport must be members of the 
CCG and each GP practice nominates a GP 
Member Representative who has voting rights. 
The Member Representatives are collectively 
known as the Council of Members.


The CCG has established its purpose as being 
‘Because of us people will access health services 
that empower them to live healthier, longer and 
more independent lives’.


The CCG’s vision is to be known and respected for 
the consistent achievement of national and local 
quality objectives, for an increased proportion of 
care being delivered in primary and community 
settings, for the reduction of inequalities in 
health outcomes, for developing a strong sense 


of personal responsibility for health among 
our population, and for having lean, agile and 
innovative leadership.


The CCG has expressed its values as follows: ‘We 
will be primary and community focused, quality 
obsessed, innovative, collaborative, reliable, 
empowering and professional.’


Scope of Responsibility
As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for 
maintaining a sound system of internal control 
that supports the achievement of the CCG’s 
policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding 
the public funds and assets for which I am 
personally responsible, in accordance with the 
responsibilities assigned to me in Managing Public 
Money. I also acknowledge my responsibilities 
as set out in my CCG Accountable Officer 
Appointment Letter.


I am responsible for ensuring that the CCG is 
administered prudently and economically and that 
resources are applied efficiently and effectively, 
safeguarding financial propriety and regularity.


Compliance with the 
UK Corporate 
Governance Code
The detailed provisions of the UK Corporate 
Governance Code are not mandatory for public 
sector bodies. However, the CCG has reported 
on its corporate governance arrangements by 
drawing upon best practice available, including 
those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance 
Code the CCG considers to be relevant and best 
practice. 


Annual
Governance Statement
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The CCG Governance 
Framework
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as 
amended), at paragraph 14L(2)(b) states:


The main function of the Governing Body is to 
ensure that the group has made appropriate 
arrangements for ensuring that it complies 
with such generally accepted principles of good 
governance as are relevant to it.


Good corporate governance arrangements are 
critical to achieving the CCG’s objectives.  


In accordance with section 14L(2)(b) of the 2006 
Act the CCG will at all times observe “such 
generally accepted principles of good governance” 
in the way it conducts its business.  


These include:


• the highest standards of propriety involving 
impartiality, integrity and objectivity in relation 
to the stewardship of public funds, the 
management of the organisation and the 
conduct of its business


• The Good Governance Standard for Public 
Services


• the standards of behaviour published by the 


Committee on Standards in Public Life (1995) 
known as the ‘Nolan Principles’


• the seven key principles of the NHS 
Constitution


• the Equality Act 2010
• Standards for Members of NHS Boards and 


Governing Bodies in England.


The Council of Members is accountable for 
exercising the CCG’s statutory functions.  It may 
grant authority to act on its behalf to any of its 
members, its Governing Body, its employees and/
or to a committee or sub-committee of the Group.


The extent of the authority to act of the respective 
bodies and individuals depends on the powers 
delegated to them by the Council of Members as 
expressed through the Constitution, the CCG’s 
scheme of reservation and delegation and, for 
committees, through their terms of reference. 


The CCG’s scheme of reservation and delegation 
sets out those decisions that are reserved for 
the membership as a whole, acting through the 
Council of Members, and those decisions that 
are the responsibilities of its Governing Body (and 
its committees), of the Group’s committees and 
sub-committees, of individual members and of its 
employees.
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The Council of Members remains accountable 
for all of its functions, including those that it has 
delegated


In discharging functions of the CCG that have 
been delegated to them, the Governing Body 
(and its committees and sub-committees), and any 
committees, joint committees, sub-committees 
of the CCG and individuals must comply with 
the CCG’s principles of good governance, must 
operate in accordance with the CCG’s scheme 
of reservation and delegation, must comply with 
the CCG’s standing orders, must comply with the 
CCG’s arrangements for discharging its statutory 
duties and, where appropriate, must ensure that 
member practices have had the opportunity to 
contribute to the CCG’s decision- making process.


When a committee, sub-committee or joint 
committee discharges delegated functions it must 
also operate in accordance with its approved 
terms of reference.  Terms of reference of the 
various committees can be found on the CCG 
website at http://stockportccg.org/publications/
     
The diagram on page 45 shows the structure 
of the CCG’s committees. At its inception 
the Governing Body established four formal 
committees which report into it. These are the 
Audit Committee, the Clinical Policy Committee, 
the Quality and Provider Management Committee, 
and the Remuneration Committee. A further 
committee, the QIPP committee, has been added 
during 2014 -15.


The Audit Committee provides the Governing 
Body with an independent and objective view 
of the Group’s financial systems, financial 
information and compliance with laws, regulations 
and directions governing the group in so far as 
they relate to finance. It supports the Governing 
Body in discharging its duties to effectively, 
efficiently and economically manage its resources, 
and to adhere to principles of good governance. 


The role of the Clinical Policy Committee 
includes the development of clinical and effective 
use of resources policies, the dissemination of 
NICE and other national guidance, the setting 
of clinical and effective use of resources policies 
for the group including prescribing policies, the 
reviewing of Greater Manchester clinical policies 


and providing advice to the Governing Body, the 
provision of advice to the Governing Body on 
the latest clinical evidence in decision-making 
including the gaps, risks, and potential costs, 
and ensuring that decisions are made on best 
evidence. 


The Quality and Provider Management 
Committee is accountable to the Group’s 
Governing Body for monitoring the quality, safety 
and performance of service providers in line 
with the Group’s Quality Strategy, for initiating 
performance interventions, and for co-ordinating 
the negotiation of contracts and variations to 
contracts. 


The Remuneration Committee makes 
recommendations to the Governing Body on 
determinations about the remuneration, fees 
and other allowances for employees and for 
people who provide services to the group and 
on determinations about allowances under any 
pension scheme that the group may establish as 
an alternative to the NHS Pension Scheme.


The QIPP Committee oversees the development 
of the CCG operational and strategic plans 
ensuring they maintain financial sustainability and 
review the implementation of such plans including 
the review of business cases. During 2014-15 
this committee also took on responsibilities for 
advising the Governing Body on matters of a 
conflict of interest. 


During the latter part of 2014-15 the CCG 
have agreed with NHS England to jointly 
commission primary care from April 2015-16 
and as such have with NHS England set up a 
joint committee of the CCG to undertake this 
function as outlined in national guidance for 
level 2 co-commissioning. This will be known as 
the Primary Care Commissioning Committee. 
The Terms of Reference will be available on the 
CCG website from the first of April 2015. The 
committee will be chaired by the CCG Lay Chair 
and will be responsible carrying out the functions 
relating to the commissioning of primary medical 
services under section 83 of the NHS Act except 
those relating to individual GP performance 
management, which have been reserved to NHS 
England.
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The Governing Body reviewed its own 
performance including feedback from the national 
360 degree feedback exercise undertaken as part 
of the assurance process. It determined that it 
needed to develop both individual clinical leaders 
and strengthen succession planning and do some 
more work as a Governing Body on how it works. 
During 2014-15 it commissioned a bespoke 
development course through the North-West 
Leadership Academy for 15 GP leaders including 
those who sat on the Governing Body and its 
committees and others involved in leading key 
pieces of work. The Chair also commissioned a 
three year development program to support her 
in ensuring the governing body further enhanced 
the way it undertook its functions and worked 
together. One early priority for 2015-16 identified 
is to look at how the Governing Body it might 
strengthen the role of its locality committees and 
improve membership relations. 


The Governing Body’s formal committees will be 
conducting their own reviews of effectiveness now 
that they have been operational for a full year.


The committees can report the following 
highlights for 2014-15:


Quality and Provider Management Committee
●   Increased the focus on Mental Health quality 


monitoring and improvement.  Overseen 
an improvement in access to psychological 
therapies.


●   Overseen an improvement in Stockport 
Provider’s compliance to Safeguarding 
Standards


●   Overseen an improvement in children’s access 
to speech and language therapy services.


●   Overseen the successful implementation of 
the Friends and Family Test to monitor patient 
experience of commissioned services.


●   Reviewed eye care provision in Stockport and 
supported improvements to service delivery.


Audit Committee
●   Overall opinion of significant assurance given 


by internal audit  
●   Unqualified audit opinion received from 


external audit 


Remuneration Committee
●   Reviewed pay levels for the Governing Body 


members for 2014-15
●   Putting in place effective payment levels and 


mechanisms for other clinical leaders not on 
Agenda for Change


Clinical Policy Committee
●   Maintaining the EUR and prescribing thresholds
●   Continued utilisation of the costing tool 


to identify the costing implications of NICE 
Technology Appraisals


●   Reviewed and assessed patient pathways and 
NICE guidance


QIPP Committee
●   Overseen the development and successful 


implementation of a recovery plan during the 
year


●   Provided challenge in the development of the 
2015-16 financial and operational plans


Locality Committees
●   Ensured successful development, shaping 


and implementation of the GP development 
scheme across Stockport


●   Continued to generate high levels of 
attendance from member practices


●   Successfully transition to new locality chairs in 
two localities.
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The Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
Risk Management 
Framework
During 2013-14 the CCG introduced a refreshed 
approach towards risk management. During 
2014-15 the new approach was imbedded within 
the organisation with a series of workshops 
tailored for each directorate which reviewed 
each directorate’s areas of operational risk, the 
actions underway to mitigate such risks, and the 
underlying likelihood and impact of each specific 
risk. These sessions included tailored training and 
advice to specific managers. These risks are now 
routinely reviewed by the responsible manager for 
any change in their likelihood or mitigations.


The directorate operational risk reports are 
reviewed collectively by the directors who monitor 
the overall risk profile of the CCG and who 
determine the CCG’s risk appetite. During 2014-
15 the directors held a specific session with the 
risk lead to ensure consistency of scoring across 
the risk register.


During 2014-15 the CCG has improved the 
tools provided to staff to support with incident 
reporting. There is now a standard operating 
procedure ‘handy guide’ available to all staff on 
the intranet. The CCG is also encouraging the 
reporting of third party incidents on its in-house 
database to support with improved provider 
monitoring and reporting.


The Governing Body aims to conduct its business 
in a transparent and open manner. In line with this 
approach the Audit Committee’s opinion of the 
operational risk management processes is reported 
publically when the Governing Body receives the 
committee’s minutes.


The Governing Body also regularly receives the 
Board Assurance Framework which sets out the 
CCG’s strategic risk profile. As well as being 
discussed in public this framework also includes 
areas of responsibility of some of the CCG’s chief 
stakeholders such as the local authority and GP 
Member Representatives.


The CCG considers that it has a mature 
approach towards risk management. To this 
end it recognises that an effective organisation 
manages its risks (rather than prevents risk). In 
support of this approach the CCG engages fully 
with NHS Protect to maintain effective deterrents 
against fraud, and has supported some successful 
initiatives.


The Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
Internal Control 
Framework
A system of internal control is the set of processes 
and procedures in place in the CCG to ensure 
it delivers its policies, aims and objectives. It 
is designed to identify and prioritise the risks, 
to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being 
realised and the impact should they be realised, 
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically.


The system of internal control allows risk to 
be managed to a reasonable level rather than 
eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of 
effectiveness.


The Governing Body is responsible for setting the 
strategic direction of the CCG and, in support 
of this, it approves the annual business plan. At 
each of the Governing Body meetings there is 
a Performance Report received by the members 
which sets out the CCG’s progress against 
its constitutional requirements and statutory 
compliance indicators and regular updates. The 
report details progress, identifies those areas of 
underperformance or of significant challenge, and 
sets out the actions being taken by the executive 
to improve performance.


A key component of the Performance Report is 
the Board Assurance Framework. This framework 
views the organisation’s performance from 
the perspective of its strategic risk profile. The 
individual strategic risks each have one of the 
executive directors as the risk owner.
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Information 
Governance
The NHS Information Governance Framework 
sets the processes and procedures, by which the 
NHS handles information about patients and 
employees, in particular personal identifiable 
information.


The NHS Information Governance Framework is 
supported by an information governance toolkit 
and the annual submission process provides 
assurances to the CCG, other organisations and to 
individuals that personal information is dealt with 
legally, securely, efficiently and effectively.


The CCG places high importance on ensuring 
there are robust information governance systems 
and processes in place to help protect patient and 
corporate information. The CCG has established 
an information governance management 
framework and are developing information 
governance processes and procedures in line with 
the information governance toolkit. 


The CCG has ensured that all staff undertake 
annual information governance training and 
have introduced a staff information governance 
handbook to ensure staff are aware of their 
information governance roles and responsibilities.


There are processes in place for incident reporting 
and investigation of serious incidents. The CCG 
currently developing information risk assessment 
and management procedures and a programme 
will be established to fully embed an information 
risk culture throughout the organisation.


The CCG has in place a Senior Information Risk 
Officer (the Chief Finance Officer) and Caldecott 
Guardian. 


Pension Obligations
As an employer with staff entitled to membership 
of the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures 
are in place to ensure all employer obligations 
contained within the scheme regulations are 
complied with. This includes ensuring that 
deductions from salary, employer’s contributions 
and payments into the scheme are in accordance 
with the scheme rules, and that member pension 
scheme records are accurately updated in 
accordance with the timescales detailed in the 
regulations.


Equality, Diversity 
and Human Rights 
Obligations
There are control measures in place to ensure that 
the CCG complies with the required public sector 
equality duties set out in the Equality Act 2010. 
The CCG’s performance in this area is reported 
annually to the Governing Body.


Sustainable 
Development 
Obligations
The CCG has adopted a Sustainability Policy 
which recognises our obligations as a major local 
employer. The CCG recognises that the decisions 
that it makes on a daily basis have a major impact 
on its staff, on the local economy, and on the 
environment. The policy uses as its foundation the
Good Corporate Citizenship Assessment Model 
and therefore it looks at ten areas where the 
organisation can improve sustainability: energy 
and carbon management, procurement and 
food, low carbon travel, transport and access, 
water, waste, the estate, corporate citizenship 
(organisation and workforce development), 
working with partners to reduce environmental 
impact, governance, commissioning and 
procurements (buying green), and finance.
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The policy sets out some practical steps which the
CCG can take to improve its work on 
sustainability. These include moving towards 
being a paper-lite working environment to reduce 
printing and paper costs, supporting staff who 
wish to reduce their journeying by private car 
by providing subsidised public transport passes 
and introducing a ‘cycle to work’ scheme. 
When considering the possible locations for 
commissioned services the CCG will take account 
of accessibility by public transport.


Risk Assessment in 
Relation to Governance, 
Risk Management and 
Internal Control
The CCG’s strategic risk profile is detailed within 
the Board Assurance Framework. Each individual 
strategic risk is reviewed by the executive director 
risk owner on a monthly basis to determine the 
likelihood of the risk arising, to consider the 
effectiveness of the controls, and to identify any 
future events which may potentially impact upon 
the area of risk in either a positive or negative way.


The Board Assurance Framework is then reported 
regularly to the Governing Body as part of the 
Performance Report. This is published on the 
CCG’s public website. The CCG’s operational 
risk register is aligned to the Board Assurance 
Framework and covers the organisation’s 
operational areas. The Board
Assurance Framework/strategic risk register and 
the operational risk register have both been 
reviewed in detail during 2014-15 and so it 
can be considered that all of the organisation’s 
operational and strategic risks have been updated 
in-year.


The Board Assurance Framework does contain the 
following two ‘severe’ risks:


●   The organisation’s capacity, capability and/
or internal engagement remain inadequate 
(including commissioner support services). To 
mitigate against this risk the executive team 


  will be undertaking a review of the alignment 
of staff with CCG priorities and will need 
to ensure during 2015-16 that alternative 
provision for the CSU is identified in a timely 
and effective manner.


●   The CCG providers fail to provide efficient and 
timely health services to the public and patients 
of Stockport. Continuing non-delivery of the 
A&E 4hour target and associated challenges 
in the urgent care system are not satisfactory. 
The CCG with its local partners has put another 
recovery plan in place. In the medium-term 
sustainability will only come about through 
significant transformation. There is a significant 
Stockport wide programme being developed.


The CCG also has the following strategic risk: 
The CCG fails to meet its statutory duties for 
compliance (including those for procurement). 
This risk is currently assessed as an area of low 
risk; however, the executive team recognises that 
there needs to be continual focus and oversight in 
this area to ensure risk of non-compliance remains 
low.


The Governing Body routinely receives a 
compliance dashboard which has set out the 
CCG’s performance against its areas of statutory 
requirement. This has been included in the
Performance Report and presented by the Chief 
Operating Officer. This Strategic Performance 
Report also provides the Governing Body with 
oversight of the CCG’s performance as well as 
some ‘deep dive’ detailed reporting of specific 
areas of concern to the members. The Governing 
Body has also received the output of the NHS 
England Checkpoint Reviews which has provided 
an independent assessment of the CCG’s 
performance.


Meetings of the Governing Body are held in public 
and are minuted; therefore the patients and public 
of Stockport are able to ascertain for themselves 
the degree of rigour of the Governing Body’s 
review of the CCG’s performance. 


R
es


o
u


rc
es


, 
p


ri
n


ci
p


al
 r


is
ks


 a
n


d
 u


n
ce


rt
ai


n
ti


es
 in


 r
el


at
io


n
sh


ip
s 


A
n


n
u


al G
o


vern
an


ce Statem
en


t







P A G E  5 1


R
eso


u
rces, p


rin
cip


al risks an
d


 u
n


certain
ties in


 relatio
n


sh
ip


s 
A


n
n


u
al G


o
vern


an
ce Statem


en
t


Review of Economy, 
Efficiency and 
Effectiveness of the Use 
of Resources
The Governing Body has received a monthly 
Finance Report which includes details of the CCG’s 
achievement against target surplus, its year-to-
date financial position, and the key challenges to 
its financial position.


The CCG’s Audit Committee maintains oversight 
of the organisation’s financial processes. They 
are supported in this work by both internal and 
external auditors with internal audit providing 
significant assurance for the CCGs key financial 
systems.


Review of the 
Effectiveness of 
Governance, Risk 
Management and 
Internal Control
As Accountable Officer I have responsibility for 
reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control within the CCG.


Capacity to Handle Risk
The CCG’s processes and procedures for risk 
management are overseen by the Board Secretary. 
During 2014-15 the Board Secretary delivered 
a series of directorate-level training workshops 
on the management of risk. The output from 
these workshops formed the content of the 
revised operational risk register. An additional 
workshop was arranged specifically for directors 
to ensure risk reporting was consistency across the 
organisation.


The staff and managers of the CCG are able to 
approach the Board Secretary for support with 
identifying, assessing and managing their areas of 
risk. In addition there is supporting documentation 
available on the intranet. It has been shown 
that the workshop-based approach supports the 
sharing of best practice between risk owners.


The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness 
and operation of the CCG’s risk management 
processes; this is led by the Governing Body’s Lay 
Member for Audit and Governance who is the 
chair of the Audit Committee.


Review of Effectiveness
My review of the effectiveness of the system 
of internal control is informed by the work of 
the internal auditors and the clinical directors, 
executive directors and clinical leads within 
the CCG who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the internal 
control framework. I have drawn on performance 
information available to me. My review is also 
informed by comments made by the external 
auditors in their management letter and other 
reports.


The Board Assurance Framework itself provides 
me with evidence that the effectiveness of 
controls that manage risks to the CCG achieving 
its principles objectives have been reviewed. I have 
been advised on the implications of the result of 
my review of the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control by the Governing Body and by the 
Audit Committee and a plan to ensure continuous 
improvement of the system is in place.


Following completion of the planned audit work 
for the financial year for the CCG, the Head of 
Internal Audit issued an independent and objective 
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
CCG’s system of risk management, governance 
and internal control.
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The Head of Internal 
Audit Opinion (HolA)
The purpose of this Director of Internal Audit 
Opinion is to contribute to the assurances 
available to the Accountable Officer and the 
Governing Body which underpin the Governing 
Body’s own assessment of the effectiveness of 
the organisation’s system of internal control. This 
Opinion will assist the Governing Body in the 
completion of its Annual Governance Statement.
My overall opinion is:


Significant Assurance can be given that that 
there is a generally sound system of internal 
control designed to meet the organisation’s 
objectives, and that controls are generally being 
applied consistently. However, some weaknesses in 
the design or inconsistent application of controls 
put the achievement of a particular objective 
at risk. The basis for forming my opinion is as 
follows:


Assurance Framework 


An Assurance Framework has been established 
which is designed and operating to meet 
the requirements of the Annual Governance 
Statement and provide reasonable assurance that 
there is an effective system of internal control 
to manage the principal risks identified by the 
organisation.


Assurance across the organisation’s critical 
business systems: 


Access to Services


● Our review of the CCG’s QIPP processes 
provided a significant assurance opinion but 
recommendations to further improve processes 
were made, particularly around benefits 
realisation.


● Significant assurance opinions were also 
provided in our reviews of Key Financial 
Systems, Provider Contract Management and 
CSU contract management.


Transparency and Governance


● Our year-end review of the CCG’s Assurance 
Framework was assessed as meeting NHS 
requirements. In addition our review of Risk 
Management also provided a significant 
assurance opinion.


● Our review of Governing Body Expenses 
provided limited assurance and highlighted 
the need to ensure appropriate policies and 
procedures are in place.


Patient Participation and Customer Service


● A review of the CCG’s processes for ensuring 
the Quality of Commissioned Services provided 
significant assurance highlighting the effective 
reporting and governance processes in place.


Informed Commissioning


● A review of the CCG’s Commissioning Strategy 
provided an overall significant assurance 
opinion.


● Our review of the CCG’s Information
     Governance Toolkit provided limited assurance 


as we were unable to review and verify the 
evidence in place prior to the IG submission.


Higher standards


● Our follow up identified that the CCG has 
taken appropriate action to address previous 
internal audit recommendations and where 
these have not yet been addressed action is 
planned.


● Action has been agreed by Management to 
address the recommendations made in the 
internal audit reviews and we will undertake a 
follow up of the recommendations to provide 
assurance to the Audit Committee that the 
issues raised have been addressed.
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Contribution to Governance, Risk 
Management and Internal Control 
enhancements: 


● Detailed insight into the overall governance 
and assurance processes gained from liaison 
throughout the year with management.


● Involvement with the organisation in respect 
of advice and guidance relating to Governing 
Body Expenses and attendance at the Audit 
Committee.


● On-going discussion with lead officers, Lay 
Members and the membership throughout the 
year.


● Effective utilisation of internal audit including in 
year communication, and changes to the audit 
plan in respect of Governing Body Expenses.


● Follow up, demonstrating significant progress 
against recommendations to improve systems 
and controls.


● Provision of MIAA briefings including Duty 
of Candour, Investigations, Regulation, 
Sustainability, Human Factors, Safe Staffing and 
Fit and Proper Person Test.


● Involvement through MIAA events, including 
CCG Lay Member Learning Series and Audit 
Committee Chairs.


● Engagement with MIAA Insights benchmarking 
and outcome reporting, including CCG 
Assurance Frameworks, and Gifts and 
Hospitality.


The Opinion does not imply that Internal Audit 
have reviewed all risks and assurances relating 
to the organisation. The opinion is substantially 
derived from the conduct of risk-based plans 
generated from a robust and organisation-
led Assurance Framework. As such, it is one 
component that the Governing Body takes 
into account in making its Annual Governance 
Statement.


Tim Crowley
Director of Audit, MIAA 
April 2015
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Action has been agreed by management to 
address all recommendations made as part of 
the internal audit reviews. Internal Audit will 
also undertake follow up reviews to ensure 
recommendations have been implemented to 
provide assurance to the Audit Committee that 
the issues raised have been addressed.


Data Quality
The Governing Body is presented with different 
types of data from a number of sources. Much 
of the data is provided to the CCG by specialist 
analysts at the North West Commissioning 
Support Unit. Oversight of the provided data is 
given by the CCG’s Head of Strategic Business 
Intelligence and the Finance and Contracts Lead.
.
The Governing Body also receives information 
which is more of a narrative form such as the 
assurance reports from its formal committees. A 
key element of the CCG’s internal control is the 
Governing Body’s effectiveness in triangulating 
these different sources and types of information.


During 2014-15 there have been discussions at 
the Governing Body meetings regarding the types 
of data being reported and this has informed a 
process of review and refinement of the reporting 
especially for the Strategic Performance Report.


Business Critical Models
The CCG uses only those models prescribed by 
NHS England.


Data Security
The CCG has submitted a satisfactory level of 
compliance with the information governance 
toolkit assessment which has resulted in being 
assessed at level 2.  


Discharge of Statutory 
Functions
During establishment, the arrangements put in 
place by the CCG were developed with extensive 
expert external legal input, to ensure compliance 
with the all relevant legislation. That legal advice 
also informed the matters reserved for the Council 
of Members’ and Governing Body’s decision and 
the scheme of delegation.


In light of the Harris Review, the CCG has 
reviewed all of the statutory duties and powers 
conferred on it by the National Health Service 
Act 2006 (as amended) and other associated 
legislation and regulations. As a result I can 
confirm that the CCG is clear about the legislative 
requirements associated with each of the statutory 
functions for which it is responsible, including any 
restrictions on delegation of those functions.


Responsibility for each duty and power has been 
clearly allocated to a lead Director. Directorates 
have confirmed that their structures provide the 
necessary capability and capacity to undertake all 
of the CCG’s statutory duties.


Conclusion
No significant internal control issues have been 
identified throughout the year and up until the 
date of the approval of the annual accounts. 


Dr Ranjit Gill
Accountable Officer
27 May 2015
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NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group - Annual Accounts 2014-15


FOREWORD TO THE  ACCOUNTS


The clinical commissioning group was licenced from 1 April 2013 under provisions enacted in the 
Health & Social Care Act 2012, which amended the National Health Service Act 2006


These accounts for the year ended 31 March 2015 have been prepared by NHS Stockport Clinical 
Commissioning Group under section 17 of schedule 1A of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as 
amended) in the form which the Secretary of State has, with the approval of the Treasury, directed.


The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) requires the CCG to produce its Annual Accounts 
in the form and have the content as laid down in the Government Financial Reporting Manual for the 
relevant financial year, taking account of the application guidance contained in the Department of 
Health Group Manual for Accounts for the relevant financial year, and CCG specific application 
guidance issued by NHS England.
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NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group - Annual Accounts 2014-15


Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended
31 March 2015


2014-15 2013-14
Note £000 £000


Total Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits 4.1.1 4,691 4,200
Operating Expenses 5 355,857 341,974
Other operating revenue 2 (896) (346)
Net operating expenditure before interest 359,652 345,828


Finance costs 0 0
Net operating expenditure for the financial year 359,652 345,828


Net (gain)/loss on transfers by absorption 0 0
Total Net Expenditure for the year 359,652 345,828


Of which:
Administration Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits 4.1.1 3,530 3,153
Operating Expenses 5 3,402 3,594
Other operating revenue 2 (710) (109)
Net administration costs before interest 6,222 6,638


Programme Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits 4.1.1 1,161 1,047
Operating Expenses 5 352,455 338,380
Other operating revenue 2 (186) (237)
Net programme expenditure before interest 353,430 339,190


Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure 0 0
Total comprehensive net expenditure for the year 359,652 345,828


The notes on pages 7 to 26 form part of this statement
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Statement of Financial Position as at
31 March 2015


31 March 2015 31 March 2014


Note £000 £000
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 8 14 18
Total non-current assets 14 18


Current assets:
Trade and other receivables 9 1,363 721
Cash and cash equivalents 10 43 56
Total current assets 1,406 777


Total assets 1,420 795


Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 11 (20,923) (18,975)
Provisions 12 (883) (438)
Total current liabilities (21,806) (19,413)


Non-Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets/Liabilities (20,386) (18,618)


Total non-current liabilities 9, 11, 12 0 0


Assets less Liabilities (20,386) (18,618)


Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity
General fund (20,386) (18,618)
Total taxpayers' equity: (20,386) (18,618)


The notes on pages 7 to 26 form part of this statement


The financial statements on pages 3 to 6 were approved by the Governing Body on 27 May 2015 and signed on its behalf by:


Accountable Officer Date: 27 May 2015
Dr Ranjit Singh Gill
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Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended
31 March 2015


General fund
Revaluation 


reserve Other reserves Total reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000


Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15


Balance at 1 April 2014 (18,618) 0 0 (18,618)


Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred from closed NHS bodies 0 0 0 0
Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 1 April 2014 (18,618) 0 0 (18,618)


Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15
Net operating expenditure for the financial year (359,652) (359,652)


Total revaluations against revaluation reserve 0 0 0 0


Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial  Year (378,270) 0 0 (378,270)


Net funding 357,884 0 0 357,884


Balance at 31 March 2015 (20,386) 0 0 (20,386)


General fund
Revaluation 


reserve Other reserves Total reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000


Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2013-14


Balance at 1 April 2013 0 0 0 0
Transfer of assets and liabilities from closed NHS bodies as a result of the 1 April 2013 transition 23 0 0 23
Adjusted NHS Commissioning Board balance at 1 April 2013 23 0 0 23


Changes in NHS Commissioning Board taxpayers’ equity for 2013-14
Net operating costs for the financial year (345,828) (345,828)


Total revaluations against revaluation reserve 0 0 0 0


Net Recognised NHS Commissioning Board Expenditure for the Financial  Year (345,805) 0 0 (345,805)
Net funding 327,187 0 0 327,187


Balance at 31 March 2014 (18,618) 0 0 (18,618)


The notes on pages 7 to 26 form part of this statement
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
31 March 2015


2014-15 2013-14
Note £000 £000


Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net operating expenditure for the financial year (359,652) (345,828)
Depreciation and amortisation 5 4 5
(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 9 (642) (721)
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 11 1,947 18,975
Provisions utilised 12 (106) 0
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 12 551 438
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities (357,898) (327,131)


Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities 0 0


Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing (357,898) (327,131)


Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Grant in Aid Funding Received 357,885 327,187
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities 357,885 327,187


Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 10 (13) 56


Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year 56 0


Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year 43 56


The notes on pages 7 to 26 form part of this statement
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Notes to the financial statements


1 Accounting Policies


NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the Manual for 
Accounts issued by the Department of Health. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
Manual for Accounts 2014-15 issued by the Department of Health. The accounting policies contained in the Manual for Accounts follow 
International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to clinical commissioning groups, as determined 
by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the Manual for Accounts permits a choice of accounting 
policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the clinical commissioning group for the 
purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the clinical commissioning group are described below. 
They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.


1.1 Going Concern


These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis 


Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as 
evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.


Where a clinical commissioning group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same assets, 
by another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of Financial Statements.  If services will 
continue to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.


1.2  Accounting Convention


These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, 
intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.


1.3 Acquisitions & Discontinued Operations


Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public sector. Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only 
if they cease entirely. They are not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to another.


1.4 Movement of Assets within the Department of Health Group


Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with the Government Financial Reporting 
Manual, issued by HM Treasury. The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions 
(which have been accounted for under merger accounting) have not been restated. Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their 
transactions in the period in which they took place, with no restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector.  
Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is disclosed 
separately from operating costs.


Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Department of Health Group are accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give rise to 
income and expenditure entries.


1.5 Pooled Budgets


Where the clinical commissioning group has entered into a pooled budget arrangement under Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 
the clinical commissioning group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled 
budget, identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement.


If the clinical commissioning group is in a “jointly controlled operation”, the clinical commissioning group recognises:
·                The assets the clinical commissioning group controls;
·                The liabilities the clinical commissioning group incurs;
·                The expenses the clinical commissioning group incurs; and,
·                The clinical commissioning group’s share of the income from the pooled budget activities.


If the clinical commissioning group is involved in a “jointly controlled assets” arrangement, in addition to the above, the clinical commissioning 
group recognises:
·                The clinical commissioning group’s share of the jointly controlled assets (classified according to the nature of the assets);
·                The clinical commissioning group’s share of any liabilities incurred jointly; and,
·                The clinical commissioning group’s share of the expenses jointly incurred.


1.6 Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty


In the application of the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those 
estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods.


1.6.1  Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies


The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process of 
applying the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements:
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The accounting arrangements for balances transferred from predecessor PCTs ("legacy" balances) are determined by the Accounts Direction 
issued by NHS England on 24 February 2015. The Accounts Directions state that the only legacy balances to be accounted for by the CCG are in 
respect of property, plant and equipment (and related liabilities) and inventories. All other legacy balances in respect of assets or liabilities arising 
from transactions or delivery of care prior to 31 March 2013 are accounted for by NHS England. 


Contributions to the NHS continuing healthcare risk pool scheme are to be accounted for in accordance with the mechanism set out in the letter to 
clinical commissioning Accountable Officers and Chief Finance Officers dated 12 September 2014 (Gateway reference 02252).


1.6.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty


The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of applying the clinical commissioning group’s accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:


1.6.2.1 Prescribing  liability


The clinical commissioning group receives financial information from NHS Business Services Authority relating to the costs of drugs prescribed by 
clinical commission group prescribers (independent GPs). The information available for actual drug costs prescribed in the year is provided two 
month in arrears, therefore the actual data received at the Statement of Financial Position date is to 31 January 2015, and an estimate for 
February and March is required.


Two months of prescribing activity totalling £7,560,201 has been estimated. The estimation of two months expenditure has been calculated by 
multiplying the number of prescribing dispensing days within the two month period by the average daily prescribing cost.


1.7 Revenue


Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration receivable.


Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is deferred.


1.8 Employee Benefits


1.8.1 Short-term Employee Benefits


Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees, including 
bonuses earned but not yet taken.


The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that 
employees are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.


1.8.2 Retirement Benefit Costs


Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme 
that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The 
scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. 
Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the clinical commissioning group of participating in 
the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.


For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability 
for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the clinical commissioning group commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the 
method of payment.


1.9 Other Expenses


Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured at the fair 
value of the consideration payable.


Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation, 
which occurs when all of the conditions attached to the payment have been met.


1.10 Property, Plant & Equipment


1.10.1 Recognition


Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
• It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
• It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the clinical commissioning group;
• It is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
• The cost of the item can be measured reliably; and,
• The item has a cost of at least £5,000; or,
• Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are 
   functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and
   are under single managerial control; or,
• Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost.


Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components are treated 
as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.







9


NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group - Annual Accounts 2014-15


Notes to the financial statements


1.10.2 Valuation


All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and 
bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. All assets are 
measured subsequently at fair value.


Land and buildings used for the clinical commissioning group’s services or for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financial 
position at their re-valued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any impairment.


Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from those that would be 
determined at the end of the reporting period. Fair values are determined as follows:
• Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost.
• Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost.


HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets and, where it 
would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued.


Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost includes 
professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. 
Assets are re-valued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.


Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be materially different from fair value.


An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same asset previously 
recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there. A revaluation 
decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve 
to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear 
consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reported as other 
comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.


1.10.3 Subsequent Expenditure


Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where subsequent 
expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item replaced is 
written-out and charged to operating expenses.


1.11 Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairments


Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated.


Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible non-
current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of economic benefits or service 
potential of the assets. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the clinical commissioning group expects to obtain economic 
benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the clinical commissioning group and may be shorter than the physical life of the 
asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective 
basis. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.


At each reporting period end, the clinical commissioning group checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or intangible non-
current assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to 
determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually.


A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the 
revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise 
from a clear consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of 
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would have been determined had there 
been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged 
there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.


1.12 Leases


Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are 
classified as operating leases.


1.12.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee


Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned 
between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Finance charges are recognised in calculating the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit.


Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a 
liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.


Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.


Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they are 
operating or finance leases.
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1.13 Services Received


The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant expenditure headings within ‘operating expenses’.


1.14 Cash & Cash Equivalents


Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents 
are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with 
insignificant risk of change in value.


In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an 
integral part of the clinical commissioning group’s cash management.


1.15 Provisions


Provisions are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that the clinical commissioning group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting 
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate as follows:
·                Timing of cash flows (0 to 5 years inclusive): Minus 1.50%
·                Timing of cash flows (6 to 10 years inclusive): Minus 1.05%
·                Timing of cash flows (over 10 years): Plus 2.20%
·                All employee early departures: 1.30%


When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is 
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.


A restructuring provision is recognised when the clinical commissioning group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has 
raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features 
to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are 
those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with on-going activities of the entity.


1.16  Clinical Negligence Costs


The NHS Litigation Authority operates a risk pooling scheme under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the 
NHS Litigation Authority which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHS 
Litigation Authority is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the clinical commissioning group.


1.17 Non-clinical Risk Pooling


The clinical commissioning group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling 
schemes under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives 
assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are 
charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.


1.18 Continuing healthcare risk pooling


In 2014-15 a risk pool scheme has been introduced by NHS England for continuing healthcare claims, for claim periods prior to 31 March 2013.  
Under the scheme clinical commissioning group contribute annually to a pooled fund, which is used to settle the claims.


1.19 Contingencies


A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group, or a present obligation that is 
not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.


A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group. A contingent asset is disclosed where an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable.


1.20 Financial Assets


Financial assets are recognised when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade 
receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the 
asset has been transferred.


Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
·                Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;
·                Held to maturity investments;
·                Available for sale financial assets; and,
·                Loans and receivables.


The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
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1.20.1 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss


Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives whose 
separate value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair value, with any 
resultant gain or loss recognised in calculating the clinical commissioning group’s surplus or deficit for the year. The net gain or loss incorporates 
any interest earned on the financial asset.


1.20.2 Held to Maturity Assets


Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, and there is a positive 
intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial recognition, they are held at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any 
impairment. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.


1.20.3 Available For Sale Financial Assets


Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or that do not fall within any of the 
other three financial asset classifications. They are measured at fair value with changes in value taken to the revaluation reserve, with the 
exception of impairment losses. Accumulated gains or losses are recycled to surplus/deficit on de-recognition.


1.20.4 Loans & Receivables


Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market. After 
initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.  Interest is recognised using the 
effective interest method.


Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by valuation techniques.


The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, to the 
initial fair value of the financial asset.


At the end of the reporting period, the clinical commissioning group assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair value 
through profit and loss’ are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective evidence of impairment 
as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash 
flows of the asset.


For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The loss is recognised in 
expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through a provision for impairment of receivables.


If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after 
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount 
of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not 
been recognised.


1.21 Financial Liabilities


Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-
recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.
Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost. Otherwise, financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.


1.21.1 Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities


Financial guarantee contract liabilities are subsequently measured at the higher of:
·                The premium received (or imputed) for entering into the guarantee less cumulative amortisation; and,
·                The amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets.


1.21.2 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss


Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives whose 
separate value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair value, with any 
resultant gain or loss recognised in the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest payable on the 
financial liability.


1.21.3 Other Financial Liabilities


After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for loans from 
Department of Health, which are carried at historic cost. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.


1.22 Value Added Tax


Most of the activities of the clinical commissioning group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on 
purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of 
fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.


1.23 Foreign Currencies
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The clinical commissioning group’s functional currency and presentational currency is sterling. Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are 
translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated 
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March. Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these are 
recognised in the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise.


1.24 Third Party Assets


Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the clinical commissioning 
group has no beneficial interest in them.


1.25 Losses & Special Payments


Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed 
legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the 
generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.


Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would 
have been made good through insurance cover had the clinical commissioning group not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums 
then being included as normal revenue expenditure).


1.26 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted


The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2014-15, all of which 
are subject to consultation:
·                IFRS 9: Financial Instruments
·                IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement
·                IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts
·                IFRS 15: Revenue for Contract with Customers


The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2014-15, were they applied in that year.
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2 Other Operating Revenue
2014-15 2014-15 2014-15 2013-14


Total Admin Programme Total


£000 £000 £000 £000


Education, training and research 6 6 0 32
Non-patient care services to other bodies 764 652 112 98
Other revenue 126 52 74 216
Total other operating revenue 896 710 186 346


Admin revenue is revenue received that is not directly attributable to the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.


3 Revenue
2014-15 2014-15 2014-15 2013-14


Total Admin Programme Total
£000 £000 £000 £000


From rendering of services 878 692 186 323
From sale of goods 18 18 0 23
Total 896 710 186 346


Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down directly into the bank account of the 
CCG and credited to the General Fund.


The increase in administration revenue reflects the contributions  made by Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council, Stockport NHS 
Foundation Trust, Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust and North Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group to the Stockport 
economy transformation programme "Stockport Together" hosted by the Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group 
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4. Employee benefits and staff numbers


4.1.1 Employee benefits 2014-15 Admin


Total
Permanent 
Employees Other Total


Permanent 
Employees Other Total


Permanent 
Employees Other


£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages 3,897 3,690 207 2,930 2,776 153 967 914 54
Social security costs 322 322 0 249 249 0 73 73 0
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 472 472 0 351 351 0 121 121 0
Gross employee benefits expenditure 4,691 4,484 207 3,530 3,376 153 1,161 1,108 54


Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs 4,691 4,484 207 3,530 3,376 153 1,161 1,108 54


Less: Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 4,691 4,484 207 3,530 3,376 153 1,161 1,108 54


Total Programme
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4.2 Average number of people employed
2013-14


Total
Permanently 


employed Other Total
Number Number Number Number


Total 94 89 5 83


Of the above:
Number of whole time equivalent people 
engaged on capital projects 0 0 0 0


4.3  Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements
2014-15 2013-14
Number Number


Total Days Lost 433 286
Total Staff Years 86 78
Average working Days Lost 5.0 3.7


4.4 Exit packages agreed in the financial year


The clinical commissioning group did not agree any exit packages in the financial year


2014-15


The increase in the number of staff employed by the clinical commissioning group is due to employing, as the host organisation, 
5 Programme Management Office staff in support of the Stockport economy transformation programme "Stockport Together". In 
addition, 2014-15 reflects 4 GP clinical leads as employees of the clinical commissioning group and 2 staff transferred from the 
Greater Manchester Commissioning Support Unit under TUPE.  


The 2014-15 staff sickness data is based on the calendar year January 2014 to December 2014 due to all current financial year 
data not being available in time for inclusion within the 2014-15 accounts. The 2013-14 sickness data was based on the 9 
month period April 2013 to December 2013. April 2013 being the date the CCG was licensed to operate and December 2013 
being the last month that sickness data was available to be included within the 2013-14 accounts.


Ill health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension Scheme. There were no ill-health retirements during the financial year.
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4.5 Pension costs


Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under these 
provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.


The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the 
direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies 
to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.


Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS Body of participating in the 
scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.


In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be 
determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be 
four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:


4.5.1 Accounting valuation


A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an 
actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current 
reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme 
liability as at 31 March 2015, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2014, updated to 31 March 2015 with summary global member and 
accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the 
discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.


The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual NHS 
Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published annually. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions 
website. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.


4.5.2 Full actuarial (funding) valuation


The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme (taking into account its 
recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates.


The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 2012.


The Scheme Regulations allow contribution rates to be set by the Secretary of State for Health, with the consent of HM Treasury, and 
consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer representatives as deemed appropriate.
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4.5 Pension costs


4.5.3 Scheme Provisions


The NHS Pension Scheme provides defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and is not 
intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits can be 
obtained:


• The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of the 
last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of membership. 
Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon total pensionable 
earnings over the relevant pensionable service.


• With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum, up to 
a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension commutation”.


• Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on changes 
in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year. From 2011-12 the Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) has been used and replaced the Retail Prices Index (RPI).


• Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently incapable of fulfilling 
their duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in service, and five 
times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable.


• For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full 
amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.


• Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s 
approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
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5. Operating expenses
2014-15 2014-15 2014-15 2013-14


Total Admin Programme Total
£000 £000 £000 £000


Gross employee benefits
Employee benefits excluding governing body members 4,126 2,965 1,161 3,557
Executive governing body members 565 565 0 643
Total gross employee benefits 4,691 3,530 1,161 4,200


Other costs
Services from other CCGs and NHS England 1,474 1,357 117 4,007
Services from foundation trusts 240,056 0 240,056 231,610
Services from other NHS trusts 12,080 0 12,080 12,088
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 46,112 0 46,112 40,676
Chair and Non Executive Members 138 138 0 173
Supplies and services – clinical 793 0 793 404
Supplies and services – general 1,481 102 1,379 1,260
Consultancy services 758 738 20 215
Establishment 528 321 207 378
Transport 22 15 7 29
Premises 1,452 431 1,021 2,310
Depreciation 4 4 0 5
Audit fees 90 90 0 100
Prescribing costs 47,496 0 47,496 46,471
GPMS/APMS and PCTMS 1,970 0 1,970 1,400
Other professional fees excl. audit 237 109 128 282
Education and training 112 96 16 128
Provisions 551 1 550 438
CHC Risk Pool contributions 503 0 503 0
Total other costs 355,857 3,402 352,455 341,974


Total operating expenses 360,548 6,932 353,616 346,174


6. Better Payment Practice Code


Measure of compliance 2014-15 2014-15 2013-14 2013-14
Number £000 Number £000


Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 11,695            43,184            10,092            38,374            
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 11,428            42,304            9,961              37,802            
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 97.72% 97.96% 98.70% 98.51%


NHS Payables
Total NHS trade Invoices Paid in the year 2,559              262,229          2,090              248,062          
Total NHS trade invoices Paid within target 2,463              261,849          2,070              246,338          
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 96.25% 99.86% 99.04% 99.31%


Admin expenditure is expenditure incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of healthcare or healthcare services. All payments 
for the provision of healthcare or healthcare services reported as programme.


The Better Payment Practice Code requires the CCG to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid 
invoice, whichever is later.


Services from other CCGs and NHS England expenditure has reduced by £2.5m due to the financial value of the service level agreement 
with the Greater Manchester Commissioning Support Unit (GMCSU) reducing by £1m in line with the reduction in the service provision 
provided to the clinical commission group. In 2013-14 a £1.5m payment was made to Trafford CCG for Central Manchester University 
Hospitals Foundation Trust restructuring due to the merger of Trafford Hospital as approved by the Secretary of State; a payment of the 
same value was not required in 2014-15.


The £8.4m increase in expenditure for services from foundation trusts is a due the transfer of high cost drug expenditure totalling £3m from 
NHS England to the clinical commissioning group in 2014-15, additional £2m invested to reducing waiting list and additional £1m 
investment for support the health economy during winter.


Consultancy expenditure  increased due to engaging management consultants in support of the Stockport economy transformation 
programme "Stockport Together". Contributions towards the cost of consultancy are made by Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council, 
Stockport NHS Foundation Trust, Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust and North Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group as referred in 
note 2.


Premises costs have decreased by £0.9m because an occupancy rent based on actual cost was charge in 2014-15 rather than the 
transitional occupancy rent based on annual property cost allocations which was agreed by NHS England in 2013-14.


The £5.4m increase in expenditure on healthcare from non-NHS bodies reflects increased services provided by the commercial sector due 
to patient choice and to reduce waiting lists. Expenditure on primary care development has also contributed to the increase,
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7. Operating Leases


7.1 As lessee


7.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense 2014-15 2013-14
Land Buildings Other Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000


Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments 0 1,384 19 1,403 2,295
Total 0 1,384 19 1,403 2,295


7.1.2 Future minimum lease payments 2014-15 2013-14
Land Buildings Other Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000


Payable:
No later than one year 0 0 7 7 1
Between one and five years 0 0 20 20 0
After five years 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 27 27 1


8. Property, plant and equipment


2014-15
Furniture & 


fittings Total 
£000 £000


Cost or valuation at 1 April 2014 23 23


Cost/Valuation At 31 March 2015 23 23


Depreciation 1 April 2014 5 5


Charged during the year 4 4
Depreciation at 31 March 2015 9 9


Net Book Value at 31 March 2015 14 14


Purchased 14 14
Total at 31 March 2015 14 14


Asset financing:


Owned 14 14


Total at 31 March 2015 14 14


Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment
Furniture & 


fittings Total 
£000's £000's


Balance at 1 April 2014 0 0


At 31 March 2015 0 0


8.1 Economic lives
Minimum Life 


Furniture & fittings 3 3


The clinical commissioning group occupies property owned and managed by NHS Property Services Limited. There is currently no formal leases in place 
however the arrangements with NHS Property Services Limited fall within the definition of an IAS 17 operating lease and are therefore reported within this note.


Whilst the clinical commission group arrangements with NHS Property Services Limited fall within the definition of operating leases, rental charge for future 
years has not yet been agreed . Consequently this note does not include future minimum lease payments for the arrangements with NHS Property Services.


Maximum Life 
(Years)
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9.  Trade and other receivables Current Non-current Current Non-current
2014-15 2014-15 2013-14 2013-14


£000 £000 £000 £000


NHS receivables: Revenue 764 0 496 0
NHS prepayments and accrued income 0 0 1 0
Non-NHS receivables: Revenue 498 0 175 0
Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income 77 0 40 0
VAT 24 0 9 0
Total Trade & other receivables 1,363 0 721 0


Total current and non current 1,363 721


Included above:
Prepaid pensions contributions 0 0


NHS receivables have increased due to credits received as a result of 2014-15 contract settlements.


9.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 2014-15 2013-14
£000 £000


By up to three months 155 2
By three to six months 0 2
By more than six months 2 3
Total 157 7


10. Cash and cash equivalents


2014-15 2013-14
£000 £000


Balance at 1 April 56 0
Net change in year (13) 56
Balance at 31 March 43 56


Made up of:
Cash with the Government Banking Service 43 56
Cash in hand 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 43 56


Balance at 31 March 43 56


Patients’ money held by the clinical commissioning group, not included above 0 0


Current Non-current Current Non-current
2014-15 2014-15 2013-14 2013-14


£000 £000 £000 £000


NHS payables: revenue 1,321 0 4,686 0
NHS accruals and deferred income 798 0 1,024 0
Non-NHS payables: revenue 1,775 0 854 0
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 17,026 0 12,253 0
Social security costs 0 0 45 0
Tax 0 0 47 0
Other payables 3 0 67 0
Total Trade & Other Payables 20,923 0 18,976 0


Total current and non-current 20,923 18,976


The clinical  commissioning group had no deferred income as at 31 March 2015


A majority of the receivables are with other government bodies, therefore the risk of non payment is considered to be remote.


Other payables include £Nil outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2015


11. Trade and other payables


Non-NHS receivables have increased due to invoicing partnering organisations for their contribution to the Stockport economy transformation 
programme.


Non-NHS accruals includes £7.6m for Prescribing, £3.7m with Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council and £2.0m for Continuing Health Care.


All receivables past their due but not impaired date but not impaired have subsequently been recovered post the statement of financial position date.
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12.   Provisions
Current Non-current Current Non-current
2014-15 2014-15 2013-14 2013-14


£000 £000 £000 £000
Legal claims 1 0 0 0
Continuing care 268 0 0 0
Other 614 0 438 0
Total 883 0 438 0


Total current and non-current 883 438


Legal  Claims Continuing Care Other Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s


Balance at 1 April 2014 0 0 438 438


Arising during the year 1 268 282 551
Utilised during the year 0 0 (106) (106)
Balance at 31 March 2015 1 268 614 883


Expected timing of cash flows:
Within one year 1 268 614 883
Between one and five years 0 0 0 0
After five years 0 0 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2015 1 268 614 883


Legal claims


Continuing care


Other provisions


The clinical commission group has made an estimate for the likely future costs of claims, where patients have submitted a request 
after 31 March 2013 to the clinical commissioning group for a review of their continuing healthcare eligibility. (Claims submitted 
prior to 1 April 2013 are to settled by the NHS England risk pool scheme refer note 1.18).  The estimate is based upon claims 
made against the clinical commissioning group which have not yet been fully assessed, and where there is a likelihood of success. 
The likelihood of success is estimated by the continuing care team responsible for assessing claims.  The costs are then estimated 
by multiplying the average cost of nursing care per week by the number of weeks being claimed.


The clinical commissioning group has made a provision for transitional costs related to Greater Manchester wide programmes.


Legal claims are calculated from the number of claims currently lodged with the NHS Litigation Authority and the probabilities 
provided by them.
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13. Contingencies
2014-15 2013-14


£000 £000
Contingent liabilities
NHS Litigation Authority Legal Claims 12 0
Net value of contingent liabilities 12 0


14. Commitments


14.1 Other financial commitments


2014-15 2013-14
£000 £000


In not more than one year 1,362 1,610
In more than one year but not more than five years 0 1,479
In more than five years 0 0
Total 1,362 3,089


15. Financial instruments


15.1 Financial risk management


15.1.1 Currency risk


15.1.2 Interest rate risk


15.1.3 Credit risk


15.1.4 Liquidity risk


The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group has entered into non-cancellable contracts (which are not leases, 
private finance initiative contracts or other service concession arrangements) which expire as follows:


The Clinical Commissioning Group does not borrow money and therefore has no exposure to interest rate risk.


Because the majority of the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group and revenue comes parliamentary funding, 
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of 
the financial year are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.


NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which 
are financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group draws 
down cash to cover expenditure, as the need arises. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is not, therefore, 
exposed to significant liquidity risks.


Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during 
the period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.


Because NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to 
the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited 
role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting 
standards mainly apply. The clinical commissioning group has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds 
and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to 
change the risks facing the clinical commissioning group in undertaking its activities.


Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined 
formally within the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group standing financial instructions and policies agreed by 
the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review by the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group and 
internal auditors.


The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of 
transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group 
has no overseas operations. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group and therefore has low exposure to 
currency rate fluctuations.
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15. Financial instruments cont'd


15.2 Financial assets


At ‘fair value 
through profit 


and loss’
Loans and 


Receivables
Available for 


Sale Total
2014-15 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15


£000 £000 £000 £000


Receivables:
·          NHS 0 764 0 764
·          Non-NHS 0 498 0 498
Cash at bank and in hand 0 43 0 43
Total at 31 March 2015 0 1,305 0 1,305


At ‘fair value 
through profit 


and loss’
Loans and 


Receivables
Available for 


Sale Total
2013-14 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14


£000 £000 £000 £000


Receivables:
·          NHS 0 496 0 496
·          Non-NHS 0 175 0 175
Cash at bank and in hand 0 56 0 56
Total at 31 March 2014 0 727 0 727


15.3 Financial liabilities


At ‘fair value 
through profit 


and loss’ Other Total
2014-15 2014-15 2014-15


£000 £000 £000


Payables:
·          NHS 0 2,119 2,119
·          Non-NHS 0 18,804 18,804
Total at 31 March 2015 0 20,923 20,923


At ‘fair value 
through profit 


and loss’ Other Total
2013-14 2013-14 2013-14


£000 £000 £000


Payables:
·          NHS 0 5,710 5,710
·          Non-NHS 0 13,106 13,106
Total at 31 March 2014 0 18,816 18,816


16. Operating segments


The clinical commission group has one operating segment; commissioning of healthcare services.


17. Pooled budgets


The memorandum account for the pooled budget is:


Pooled Budget with Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council SMBC CCG Total SMBC CCG Total
Contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution


£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Older People's (Non-Acute) 5,033                952                   5,985                2,177                3,808               5,985               
Learning Disabilities 23,692              1,838                25,530              24,217              1,838               26,055             
Adult Services (Non-acute) 648                   717                   1,365                -                    1,361               1,361               
Community Equipment 295                   337                   632                   270                   337                  607                  
Mental Health 284                   289                   573                   284                   289                  573                  
Continuing Health Care Assessment Bed Service -                    342                   342                   -                    421                  421                  
Carers -                    670                   670                   -                    -                   -                   
Better care Fund and s256 5,881                -                    5,881                -                    -                   -                   
Total 35,833              5,145                40,978              26,948              8,054               35,002             


The clinical commissioning group’s share of the income and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the financial year was:


2014-15 2013-14
£000 £000


Income 0 0
Expenditure 5,314 8,060


The clinical commissioning group entered into a pooled budget with Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council (SMBC). The pool is hosted by Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council. Under 
the arrangement funds are pooled under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006.


2014-15 2013-14
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18. Intra-government and other balances
Current 


Receivables
Non-current 
Receivables


Current 
Payables


Non-current 
Payables


2014-15 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15
£000 £000 £000 £000


Balances with:
·          Other Central Government bodies 24 0 348 0
·          Local Authorities 493 0 3,732 0


Balances with NHS bodies:
·          NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group 207 0 149 0
·          NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 557 0 1,970 0
Total of balances with NHS bodies: 764 0 2,119 0


·          Public corporations and trading funds 0 0 0 0
·          Bodies external to Government 82 0 14,724 0


Total balances at 31 March 2015 1,363 0 20,923 0


Current 
Receivables


Non-current 
Receivables Current Payables


Non-current 
Payables


2013-14 2013-14 2014-15 2014-15
£000 £000 £000 £000


Balances with:
·          Other Central Government bodies 23 0 112 0
·          Local Authorities 149 0 280 0


Balances with NHS bodies:
·          NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group 191 0 1,064 0
·          NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 305 0 4,646 0
Total of balances with NHS bodies: 496 0 5,710 0


·          Public corporations and trading funds 0 0 0 0
·          Bodies external to Government 53 0 12,874 0


Total balances at 31 March 2014 721 0 18,976 0
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19. Related party transactions


Payments to 
Related Party


Receipts from 
Related Party


Amounts owed 
to Related Party


Amounts due 
from Related 


Party


Payments to 
Related Party


Receipts from 
Related Party


Amounts owed 
to Related Party


Amounts due 
from Related 


Party


£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000


Dr Ranjit Singh Gill, Chief Clinical Officer
Senior Partner at Stockport Medical Group 187 0 0 0 102 0 0 0


Jane Marie Crombleholme, Chair of the Governing Body
Sister in law is a Manager at Stockport NHS Foundation Trust 165,286 198 0 469 158,603 6 1,435 5
Brother in law is a Clinician at Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust 24,247 37 228 30 23,712 3 333 3


Dr Catherine Helen Briggs, Clinical Director of Quality and Provider Management
GP Partner at Bracondale Medical Centre 61 0 0 0 29 0 0 0
Husband is a Consultant Anaesthetist at University Hospital of South Manchester NHS 
Foundation Trust 26,270 0 428 0 25,064 0 1,328 0


Dr Jaweeda Idoo, Clinical Director of Service Reform (Resigned July 2014)
GP Partner at Alvanley Family Practice 45 0 0 0 23 0 0 0


Dr Viren Mehta, Clinical Director for General Practice Development
GP Partner at Cheadle Medical Practice 149 0 0 0 85 0 0 0
Member of Viaduct Health via Cheadle Medical Practice 105 0 18 0


Dr Ameer Aldabbagh, Chair of Stepping Hill Victoria Locality Council Committee (Resigned October 
2014)
GP Partner at Springfield Surgery 69 0 0 0 55 0 0 0


Dr Lydia Hardern, Chair of Stepping Hill Victoria Locality Council Committee (Commenced December 
2014)
GP Partner Adswood Road Surgery 46 0 0 0 29 0 0 0


Dr Peter Carne, Chair of Cheadle and Bramhall Locality Council Committee
GP at Gatley Medical Centre 139 0 0 0 75 0 0 0
Member of Mastercall Healthcare 4,569 0 295 0 5,011 0 0 0


Dr Sasha Johari, Chair of Heatons and Tame Valley Locality Council Committee (Resigned October 
2014)
GP Partner at Park View Group Practice 152 0 0 0 128 0 0 0
Member of Mastercall Healthcare 4,569 0 295 0 5,011 0 0 0
Member of Viaduct Health via Park View Group Practice 105 0 18 0


Dr James Higgins, Chair of Heatons and Tame Valley Locality Council Committee (Commenced 
January 2015)
GP Principal at Brinnington Health Centre 238 0 0 0 70 0 0 0
Member of Mastercall Healthcare 4,569 0 295 0 5,011 0 0 0
Ex-wife is employed by University Hospital of South Manchester NHS Foundation Trust 26,270 0 428 0 25,064 0 1,328 0


Dr Andrew Johnson, Chair of Marple and Werneth Locality Council Committee
GP Partner of Marple Cottage Surgery 185 0 0 0 124 0 0 0
Director of A & L Johnson Ltd 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 0


Dr Diane Lesley Jones, Director of Service Reform
Brother is employed at University Hospitals Birmingham NHS Foundation Trust 10 0 3 0 12 0 3 0


Karen Richardson, Nurse Member
Nurse Lay Member of NHS Bury Clinical Commissioning Group 2 0 0 0 40 0 24 0
Senior Service Improvement Officer for NHS Salford Cinical Commissioning Group 18 0 2 0 11 0 0 0


Dr Mary Ryan, Secondary Care Consultant (resigned December 2014)
Employee at Alder Hey Children's NHS Foundation Trust 70 0 11 0 56 0 9 0


Dr Deborah kendall, Secondary Care Consultant (Commenced March 2015)
Consultant Paediatrician, Lancashire Teaching Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 55 0 12 0 28 0 0 0
Self emplyoed private medical consultant at Spire Hospital 311 0 16 0 295 0 25 0


Self employed consultant (Workforce) various Trusts including Stockport NHS Foundation Trust 165,286 198 0 469 158,603 6 1,435 5


Dr Vicci Owen-Smith, Public Health Consultant
Employee of Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council 11,121 483 3,732 373 10,908 112 242 90
Trustee of the Together Trust 210 0 16 0 297 0 0 0


Payments to 
Related Party


Receipts from 
Related Party


Amounts owed 
to Related Party


Amounts due 
from Related 


Party


Payments to 
Related Party


Receipts from 
Related Party


Amounts owed 
to Related Party


Amounts due 
from Related 


Party
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000


Stockport NHS Foundation Trust 165,286 198 0 469 158,603 6 1,435 5
University Hospital of South Manchester NHS Foundation Trust 26,270 0 428 0 25,064 0 1,328 0
Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust 24,247 37 228 30 23,712 3 333 3
Central Manchester University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 18,650 0 216 0 18,384 0 586 0
North West Ambulance Service 7,738 0 49 0 7,952 0 26 0
Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust 2,602 0 61 0 2,187 0 0 121
East Cheshire Trust 2,540 0 197 0 2,518 0 427 0
NHS Greater Manchester Commissioning Support Unit 2,500 0 0 148 2,461 0 295 25


Payments to 
Related Party


Receipts from 
Related Party


Amounts owed 
to Related Party


Amounts due 
from Related 


Party


Payments to 
Related Party


Receipts from 
Related Party


Amounts owed 
to Related Party


Amounts due 
from Related 


Party
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000


Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council 11,121 483 3,732 373 10,908 112 242 90


In addition, the clinical commissioning group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies. Details of these transactions are set out below:


Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:


The following individuals were members of the clinical commission group Governing Body during the financial year and the clinical commissioning group has transacted with other organisations to which the members are connected. Details of these relationships 
and transactions are set out below:


2014/15 2013/14


The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year the clinical commissioning group has had a significant number of material transactions with entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department. Details of these 
transactions are set out below:
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20. Events after the end of the reporting period


21. Losses and special payments


The clinical commissioning group had no losses or special payments cases.


22. Financial performance targets


NHS Clinical Commissioning Group have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).


NHS Clinical Commissioning Group performance against those duties was as follows:


National Health
Service Act 2014-15 2014-15 2013-14 2013-14


Section Statutory Duty Target Performance Target Performance
223H(1) Expenditure not to exceed income 364,829 360,548 350,455 346,174
223I(2) Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 0
223I(3) Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 363,933 359,652 350,109 345,828
223J(1) Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 0
223J(2) Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 0
223J(3) Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 7,431 6,222 7,180 6,638


There are no post balance sheet events which will have a material effect on the financial statements of the clinical commissioning group.


For the purposes of 223H(1); expenditure is defined as the aggregate of gross expenditure on revenue and capital in the financial year; and income is defined as the aggregate of the notified maximum revenue 
resource, notified capital resource and all other amounts accounted as received in the financial year (whether under provisions of the Act or from other sources, and included here on a gross basis).
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Executive Summary



		What decisions do you require of the Governing Body?



		

To approve the Annual report and Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2015









		Please detail the key points of this report



		

This paper provides Governing Body members with a summary of the CCG’s performance for the year ended 31st March 2015.







		What are the likely impacts and/or implications?



		

Delivery against statutory financial duties.







		How does this link to the Annual Business Plan?



		

Provides details of the CCG performance against the 2014/15 Strategic Plan.









		What are the potential conflicts of interest?



		

None





		Where has this report been previously discussed?



		

Audit Committee 1st May 2015





		Clinical Executive Sponsor: Ranjit Gill



		Presented by: Gary Jones



		Meeting Date: 27th May 2015



		Agenda item:



		Reason for being in Part 2 (if applicable)



		 

N/A

























Annual Report and Accounts 2014-15



1.0	Introduction



The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) requires clinical commissioning groups (CCG’s) to prepare their Annual Report and Annual Accounts in accordance with Directions issued by NHS England. These directions require CCG’s to publish the Annual Report and Accounts as a single document.



The CCG Constitution sets out that the approval of the Annual Report and Accounts is a decision reserved to the CCG Governing Body. A draft of the CCG Annual Report and Accounts was taken to the CCG Audit Committee on the 1st May 2015. Appendix 1 details amendments made to the draft Annual Accounts with the agreement of auditors and are mainly as a result of information provided or revised NHS England guidance provided after the 24th April for inclusion in the accounts by NHSE.



[bookmark: _GoBack]Grant Thornton the CCG’s External Auditors will be presenting a report of their audit findings and will provide an opinion on whether the CCG’s financial statements are free of material misstatements and will also provide a value for money opinion.





2.0	Accounting Policies



NHS England has directed that the financial statements of CCG’s shall meet the accounting requirements of the Manual for Accounts issued by the Department of Health. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Manual for Accounts 2014-15 issued by the Department of Health. The accounting policies contained in the Manual for Accounts follow International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to CCG’s, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  



It is important to bring to member’s attention the following Critical Judgement and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty in applying accounting policies.





Critical Judgement



The accounting arrangements for balances transferred from predecessor PCTs (""legacy"" balances) are determined by the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England on 24 February 2015. The Accounts Directions state that the only legacy balances to be accounted for by the CCG are in respect of property, plant and equipment (and related liabilities) and inventories. All other legacy balances in respect of assets or liabilities arising from transactions or delivery of care prior to 31 March 2013 are accounted for by NHS England."



Contributions to the NHS continuing healthcare risk pool scheme are to be accounted for in accordance with the mechanism set out in the letter to clinical commissioning Accountable Officers and Chief Finance Officers dated 12 September 2014 (Gateway reference 02252).



Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty



The key estimation that has been made in the process of applying the CCG’s accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is the estimation of the prescribing accrual of £7.56m which is for a two month period Feb 15 and March 15 (as detailed in Note 1.6.2.1)





3.0 Financial Performance and Statutory Duties 



The CCG reported a year end surplus of £4,281k and so delivered the planned surplus level agreed with NHSE for 14/15. The details of this are set out in note 22 of the Annual Accounts.



The CCG delivered against it statutory duties in 14/15 by ensuring spend did not exceed the CCG allocation and that cash balances were held at year end within the threshold level. 



Most notability the CCG



· Achieved ‘operational financial balance’ and reported a revenue surplus of £4.28 million (carried forward as available resources into 15/16).



· Spent £6.22 million on running costs which is £1.2 million less than the running cost allowance of £7.43 million. This was a planned for reduction in 14/15 in readiness for the 10% reduction in running costs impacting in 15/16.



· Achieved £17.9m in QIPP savings, £8.7m related to CCG’s initiatives and £9.2m was achieved as a result of the 4% tariff deflator.



· Managed its cash within the cash limit provided by NHS England and held cash balance of £43k at 31st March 15.



· Exceeded the Better payment Practice Code compliance target of 95% (97.4% based on invoice numbers and 99.6% based on £ value).





4.0 	Recommendation



The Governing Body is asked to:-



1. 

1.1 

Approve the CCG’s Annual Report and Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2015. 







Gary Jones

Chief Finance Officer

20 May 2015



















APPENDIX 1 - Amendments to Draft Annual Accounts submitted on the

                        24th April 2015





Note 4.5. 	Full actuarial (funding) valuation



NHS Business Services Authority provided an updated pension disclosure on 7th May 2015





Note 4.3 Sickness Data



Sickness data was not received from NHS England until 7th May 15. The note has been updated as per below

 

[image: ]





Note 7.1.2 	Future minimum lease payments



Values in the “Total” corrected to reflect the sum total of each column 







Note 17 	Pooled Budgets



The clinical commissioning group’s share of the income and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the financial year changed from £5,145k to £5,314k to include the CCG’s share of the 14/15 over spend.
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4.3  Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements


2014-152013-14


NumberNumber


Total Days Lost433286


Total Staff Years8678


Average working Days Lost5.03.7


The 2014-15 staff sickness data is based on the calendar year January 2014 to December 2014 due to all current financial 


year data not being available in time for inclusion within the 2014-15 accounts. The 2013-14 sickness data was based on the 


9 month period April 2013 to December 2013. April 2013 being the date the CCG was licensed to operate and December 


2013 being the last month that sickness data was available to be included within the 2013-14 accounts.


Ill health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension Scheme. There were no ill-health retirements during the financial 


year.
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Private and Confidential 


Chartered Accountants 


Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 


Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.  


A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial 


Conduct Authority. 


Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a 


worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 


obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further 


details. 


Private and Confidential 


This Audit Findings report highlights the significant findings arising from the audit for the benefit of those charged with governance, as required by International Standard 


on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. Its contents will be discussed with the Governing Body at the meeting arranged for 27 May 2015.  


As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 


expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 


statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements. 


The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the 


purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, 


where, as part of our testing, we identify any control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose defalcations or 


other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept any responsibility 


for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, 


any other purpose. 


We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team, CSU and other staff during our audit. 


 


Yours sincerely, 


 


Mike Thomas 


Grant Thornton UK LLP  


4 Hardman Square 


Spinningfields 


Manchester 


M3 3EB 


 


T +44 (0)161 953 6900 


www.grant-thornton.co.uk  
22 May 2015 


 


Dear Governing Body Members, 


Audit Findings for NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group for the year ending 31 March 2015 


NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group 


Regent House 


Heaton Lane 


Stockport 


SK4 1BS 


 


Guidance note 


Red text is generic and should 


be updated specifically for your 


client. 


Once updated, change text 


colour back to black. 


 


The disclaimer paragraph 


should not be edited or 


removed as this is there for 


the auditor’s protection and 


its absence could possibly 


weaken our defence if a 


complaint or claim is made. 


 


 


 


Letter 
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Executive summary 


Executive summary 


Overall review of 


financial 


statements 


Purpose of this report 


This report highlights the key issues affecting the results of NHS Stockport 


Clinical Commissioning Group (the CCG) and the preparation of the CCG's 


financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015. It is also used to report our 


audit findings to management and those charged with governance in accordance 


with the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260.  


 


Under the Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice  (the Code) we are required 


to report whether, in our opinion, the CCG's financial statements present a true 


and fair view of the financial position. We are also required to reach a formal 


conclusion on whether the CCG has put in place proper arrangements to secure 


economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources (the Value for Money 


Conclusion). 


 


Introduction 


In the conduct of our audit we have not had to alter or change our audit approach, 


which we communicated to you in our Audit Plan dated February 2015.  


 


Our audit is substantially complete although we are finalising our procedures in the 


following areas:  


• review of the final version of the financial statements 


• obtaining and reviewing the management letter of representation and 


• updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the 


opinion. 


 


 


  


We received draft financial statements and accompanying working papers at the 


commencement of our work, in accordance with the national deadline. 


 


Key audit and financial reporting issues 


 


Financial statements opinion 


We are pleased to report that we have not identified any adjustments required to 


the draft financial statements that would affect the CCG's comprehensive net 


expenditure position.   


 


The key messages arising from our audit of the CCG's financial statements is 


that we anticipate providing a unqualified audit opinion in respect of the 


financial statements (see Appendix A). 
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Executive summary 


Overall review of 


financial 


statements 


Regularity opinion 


As well as an opinion on the accounts, we are required to give a regularity 


opinion on whether expenditure has been incurred 'as intended by 


Parliament'. Failure to meet statutory financial targets automatically results in 


a qualified regularity opinion. 


 


We are pleased to report that, based on our review of the CCG's expenditure, we 


propose to give an unqualified  regularity opinion. 


 


 


Value for Money (VFM) conclusion 


We are pleased to report that, based on our review of the CCG's arrangements to 


secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, we propose to 


give an unqualified VFM conclusion. 


 


Further detail of our work on Value for Money is set out in section three of this 


report. 


 


Agreement of Balances and Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) 


Our audit work has not identified variances in the NHS agreement of balances 


(AoB) process that we are required to report. 


 


 


 


Controls 


Roles and responsibilities 


The CCG's management is responsible for the identification, assessment, 


management and monitoring of risk, and for developing, operating and 


monitoring the system of internal control. 


 


Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of 


control weakness.  However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any 


control weaknesses, we report these to the CCG.  


 


Findings 


Our 2014/15 work has not identified any control weaknesses which we wish to 


highlight for your attention.  


 


We provide an update on prior year IT control issues on page 13 of this report.    
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Executive summary 


Overall review of 


financial 


statements 


 


 


 


The way forward 


Matters arising from the financial statements audit and our review of the CCG's 


arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 


resources have been discussed with the Chief Finance Officer and Deputy Chief 


Finance Officer. 


 


Acknowledgement 


We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the 


assistance provided by the finance team, CSU and other staff during our audit. 


 


 


 


Grant Thornton UK LLP 


May 2015 
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Audit findings against significant risks 


  Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising 


1.  Improper revenue recognition 


Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed 


risk that revenue may be misstated due to the 


improper recognition of revenue. Auditors 


may rebut this presumption depending on the 


circumstances of the client. 


We have rebutted this presumption for NHS Stockport 


Clinical Commissioning Group because: 


• revenue does not primarily involve cash transactions 


• revenue is principally an allocation from NHS England 


• other revenue in the CCG's accounts is not significant. 


We therefore do not consider this to be a significant risk 


for NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group. 


Our audit work has not identified any issues 


in respect of revenue recognition. 


 


2.  Management override of controls 


Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed 


risk that the risk of management over-ride of 


controls is present in all entities. 


 


We have assessed 


• entity level controls, including the role of the Audit 


Committee  


• significant accounting estimates, judgements and 


decisions made by management 


• large and unusual journals entries and transactions. 


Our audit work has not identified any 


evidence of management override of 


controls. In particular, the findings of our 


review of journal controls and testing of 


journal entries has not identified any 


significant issues.  


We set out later in this section of the report 


our work and findings on key accounting 


estimates and judgements.  


 


Audit findings 


Significant findings 


"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgemental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to 


size or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgemental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant 


measurement uncertainty" (ISA (UK&I) 315).  


In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  As we noted in our plan, there are two 


presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards. 
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Audit findings against other risks 


Transaction cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising 


Healthcare 


commissioning 
Contract costs not 


accounted for properly  


We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk: 


 documented our understanding of processes and key controls over the 


secondary care commissioning cycle 


 walked through a sample of items to confirm our understanding of the 


healthcare commissioning system 


 undertaken substantive sample testing of secondary healthcare costs to ensure 


payments are consistent with contracts 


 taken account of the intra-NHS agreement of balances exercise 


 taken account of service auditor reports in respect of controls operated by the 


CSU and SBS 


 undertaken sample testing of year-end creditor balances. 


 


Our audit work has not identified 


any significant issues in relation to 


the risk identified. 


Healthcare 


commissioning 
Invoiced non-contract 


costs not accounted for 


properly  


 


We have undertaken the following work in relation to this risk: 


 documented our understanding of processes and key controls over the 


secondary care commissioning cycle 


 walked through a sample of items to confirm our understanding of the 


healthcare commissioning system 


 undertaken substantive sample testing of expenditure 


 taken account of the intra-NHS agreement of balances exercise 


 taken account of service auditor reports in respect of controls operated by the 


CSU and SBS 


 undertaken sample testing of year-end balances with providers. 


Our audit work has not identified 


any significant issues in relation to 


the risk identified. 


 


Audit findings 


Significant findings 


(continued) 


In this section we detail our response to the other risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan. 
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Accounting policies, Estimates & Judgements 


Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment 


Revenue 


recognition 
 Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised 


when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is 


measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. 


The CCG has adopted an appropriate revenue recognition 


policy and has not needed to apply any significant judgements 


in relation to revenue recognition in preparing the 2014/15 


financial statements. 


 


 


 
Judgements and 


estimates 
 Key estimates and judgements include: 


 Accounting arrangements for balances transferred 


from predecessor PCTs ("legacy balances") are 


determined by the Accounts Direction issued by NHS 


England on 24 February 2015 


 two months of prescribing activity expenditure is 


estimated taking account of dispensing days and 


average daily prescribing costs. 


 


The CCG has appropriately disclosed critical judgements and 


key sources of estimation uncertainty within the notes to the 


financial statements. 


 Judgements made are appropriate under the accounting 


framework 


 The CCG's prescribing accrual has been estimated using an 


appropriate basis and audit procedures have provided 


assurance of the material accuracy of this accrual. 


 


 


Going concern The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the services 


provided by the CCG will continue for the foreseeable 


future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going 


concern basis in preparing the financial statements. 


We have reviewed management's assessment and are satisfied 


that the going concern basis is appropriate for the 2014/15 


financial statements.  


 


Other accounting 


policies 
The  CCG has adopted the standard accounting policies for 


the NHS as set out in the manual for accounts.  


We have reviewed the CCG's policies against the requirements 


of the Manual for Accounts and do not have any comments to 


make. 


  


 


Assessment 


  Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators   Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure   Accounting policy 


appropriate and disclosures sufficient 


Audit findings 


Significant findings 


– accounting 


policies# 


In this section we report on our consideration of accounting policies, in particular revenue recognition policies,  and key estimates and judgements made and included 


with the CCG's financial statements.   







© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  | NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group Audit Findings Report 2014/15  |  May 2015 12 


Other communication requirements 


  Issue Commentary 


1. Matters in relation to fraud  We have not been made aware of any significant matters in relation to fraud in the period and no other issues have been 


identified during the course of our audit procedures. 


2. Matters in relation to related 


parties 
 We are not aware of any related party transactions which have not been disclosed. 


3. Matters in relation to laws and 


regulations 
 We are not aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations. 


4. Written representations  A standard letter of representation has been requested from the CCG. 


 


5. Confirmation requests from 


third parties  
 We have obtained the direct confirmations we required during the course of our audit. 


6. Disclosures  Our review found no material disclosure omissions in the financial statements. 


 


Audit findings 


Other 


communication 


requirements# 


We set out below details of other matters which we, as auditors, are required by auditing standards to communicate to those charged with governance. 
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Internal controls – review of  issues raised in prior year 
As part of our planned programme of audit work for 2013/14 we undertook a high level review of the general IT control environment at both Greater Manchester CSU and 


the CCG. No significant issues arose from this work, although we did identify four areas where IT arrangements could be further developed and we provide an update on 


these in the table below. 


  Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue 


1.  


 
IT Security Policy 


The policy document(s) should be reviewed at planned intervals, or 


when significant changes occur, to ensure their continuing suitability, 


adequacy and effectiveness. There is an IT Security Policy, however 


this has not been reviewed or updated since March 2009. 


 


 The Greater Manchester CSU Network Security Policy was subject 


to review in October 2014. 


2.  
 X 


Network Access Review 


There is no formal review of user access to the network on a regular 


basis. If periodic reviews of user accounts are not conducted on a 


regular basis there is a risk that dormant user accounts could be 


exploited to gain unauthorised access. 


 


 The Greater Manchester CSU Network Security Policy includes a 


section on access rights and management that states user rights are 


subject to immediate review where users have changed jobs and 


that user rights are immediately reviewed where users' employment 


comes to an end. However, regular formal review of user access has 


not been evidenced. 


3. 
 X 


 


Network password strength 


The current settings for Active Directory passwords do not meet best 


practice. Poor password strength can lead to users' passwords being 


guessed or cracked. 


 


 Password settings were unchanged during the 2014/15 financial 


year. However, we understand that plans are being progressed to 


introduce minimum password lengths, minimum complexity 


requirements, password expiry, account lockout following 5 


incorrect login attempts and 


4. 
 X 


 


Periodic vulnerability assessments 


We were unable to confirm whether the CCG conducts a vulnerability 


assessment of the network. Without regular assessments common an 


easy to exploit weaknesses in the network could be used to gain 


unauthorised access. 


 


 Vulnerability testing has not been carried our this year on behalf of 


any of the Greater Manchester CCGs. However, we understand 


that there are currently plans in place to undertake penetration 


testing on the new data centre for the GM shared domain 


 


Audit findings 


Assessment 


  Action completed 


X Not yet addressed 


Internal controls - 


review of issues 


raised in prior year 


 


Guidance note 


Red text is generic and should 


be updated specifically for your 


client. 


Once updated, change text 


colour back to black. 
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Adjusted misstatements 


Audit findings 


 


Guidance note 


The table is available in the 


‘Audit Findings template’ on the 


Mercury tab in Excel. 


Tab: Adjusted misstatements 


Adjusted 


misstatements 


We are pleased to report that our audit work has not identified the need for any non-trivial reclassifications or disclosure changes. 
 


Unadjusted misstatements 


We are pleased to report that our audit work has not highlighted any unadjusted misstatements. 


Misclassifications & disclosure changes 


We are required to report all non-trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management. We are 


pleased to report that our audit work has not highlighted the need for any non-trivial adjustments. 
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Value for Money  


Value for Money 


Overall review of 


financial 


statements 


Value for money conclusion 


The Code of Audit Practice 2010 (the Code) describes the CCG's responsibilities to 


put in place proper arrangements to: 


• secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources; 


• ensure proper stewardship and governance; and 


• review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 


 


We are required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy 


ourselves that the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 


efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  


 


In 2014/15 we are required to give our VFM conclusion based on two criteria 


specified by the Audit Commission. These criteria are: 


 


The CCG has proper arrangements in place for securing financial resilience. 


The CCG has robust systems and processes to manage effectively financial risks 


and opportunities, and to secure a stable financial position that enables it to 


continue to operate for the foreseeable future. 


 


The CCG has proper arrangements for challenging how it secures economy, 


efficiency and effectiveness. 


The CCG is prioritising its resources within tighter budgets, for example by 


achieving cost reductions and by improving efficiency and productivity. 


 


 


 


 


Key findings 


Securing financial resilience 


We have undertaken a review which considered the CCG's arrangements against 


the three expected characteristics of proper arrangements as defined by the 


Audit Commission: 


 


• Financial governance; 


• Financial planning; and  


• Financial control 


  


Overall our work highlighted that whilst the CCG faces significant financial 


pressures in the 2015/16 financial year, underlying arrangements in place in 


relation to financial governance, planning and control are sound. 


 


Challenging economy, efficiency and effectiveness 


We have reviewed whether the CCG has prioritised its resources to take 


account of the tighter constraints it is required to operate within and whether it 


has achieved cost reductions and improved productivity and efficiencies. 


 


The CCG has continued to work with key stakeholders throughout the year to 


prioritise resources and work towards the transformation and integration of 


health and adult social care services in the Stockport area. 


 


Overall VFM conclusion 


On the basis of our work, and having regard to the guidance on the specified 


criteria published by the Audit Commission, we are satisfied that in all 


significant respects the CCG put in place proper arrangements to secure 


economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 


31 March 2015.  
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Value for Money 


Theme Summary findings RAG rating 


Key indicators of performance In 2014/15 the CCG has achieved all of its key financial targets, including: 


• achieving its final planned surplus of £4.3m 


• containing administration expenses within the prescribed limit of £7.4m 


• operating within its cash limit for the year. 


In 2014/15 the CCG lost an average of 5 days per member of staff to sickness absence, comparing favourably to 


both public and private sector averages. 


Green 


Strategic financial planning The CCG experienced financial pressures during 2014/15, arising from demand for acute services and the demand 


for, and cost of, GP prescribing. These pressures, which the CCG managed in 2014/15 primarily through slippage 


against planned investments, have given rise to recurrent financial pressures to be addressed for 2015/16. The 


CCG's financial plans for 2015/16 include a challenging QiPP target of £11m and forecast delivery of a 0.5% 


recurrent surplus. The 2015/16 financial plan projects delivery of all NHS England's business rules except for 


delivery of a 1% recurrent surplus. 


The CCG continues to work closely with both Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council and Stockport 


Foundation Trust in relation to the transformation and integration of health and adult social care across the 


borough. The CCG's financial plans have been shared with both the Council and the Foundation Trust and activity 


plans are agreed with the Foundation Trust.   


Amber 


Financial governance The Governing Body includes members with relevant financial expertise, and all members are involved in the 


development of the CCG's financial plans from an early stage which allows for informed debate and a good 


understanding of the financial environment. 


The CCG's financial plans are presented at public meetings of the Governing Body and are also available on the 


CCG's website. 


       Green 


 


The table below summarises our overall rating for each of the themes reviewed: 


Green Adequate arrangements 


Amber Adequate arrangements, with areas for development 


Red Inadequate arrangements 


 


We set out below our detailed findings against six risk areas which have been used to assess the CCG's performance against the Audit Commission's criteria. We 


summarise our assessment of each risk area using a red, amber or green (RAG) rating, based on the following definitions: 
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Value for Money 


Theme Summary findings 


RAG 


rating 


Financial governance (continued) The Governing Body receives regular finance reports throughout the year, including clear narrative on both actual 


and forecast expenditure, performance against targets and details of progress against savings plans. 


The Governing Body established a QiPP group during the financial year and this remains in place for 2015/16. 


             


Green 


 


Financial control The CCG has a well established, capable and stable finance team in position and an annual personal development 


programme is in place for individuals within the team. 


The CCG has established controls that allow for routine monitoring of recurrent financial commitments and the 1-


5 year financial model.  


The CCG's QiPP group monitors delivery of the QiPP on a regular basis and corrective actions are discussed and 


agreed where necessary. Alternative plans have been drafted as a contingency in the event that original schemes fail 


to deliver necessary savings. 


The CCG has an Assurance Framework in place, managed by the Head of Governance. The CCG's risk register is 


reviewed on a quarterly basis with matters of high risk being reported to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.  


The Director of Internal Audit's overall opinion for 2014/15 was one of "significant assurance", based upon a 


work programme that included key financial system reviews. 


Green 


Prioritising resources The CCG holds Governing Body strategy sessions between January and March each year to allow for debate and 


challenge in relation to the deployment of resources. 


The CCG has continued to work closely with both Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council and Stockport 


Foundation Trust as part of the "Stockport Together" transformation work, and the leaders of the three 


organisations meet on a regular basis to discuss and agree strategic direction for the Stockport area. Work has been 


jointly commissioned to support the development of new and sustainable models of care. 


A well attended two-day clinical congress was held in January 2015 allowing for consultation on priorities.  


Green 


Improving efficiency & productivity The CCG makes use of available benchmarking information to inform investment and disinvestment decisions and 


to generate debate leading to action to address areas where financial efficiencies can be achieved. During 2014/15 


a non-recurrent investment of £1.5m was made in a GP Development Scheme which targeted those practices that 


were outliers in relation to referrals, acute activity and prescribing benchmarks.  


The CCG plans to establish a Value for Money Group in 2015/16 with the remit of assessing the full range of 


commissioned services. 


Green 
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Fees, non-audit services and independence 


We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non-audit services. 


Independence and ethics 


We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors 


that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the Auditing Practices 


Board's Ethical Standards and therefore we confirm that we are independent and are able to express an 


objective opinion on the financial statements. 


We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the 


Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards. 


 


 


Fees for other services 


Service Fees £ 


None Nil 


 


Guidance note 


'Fees for other services' is to be 


used where we need to 


communicate agreed fees in 


advance of the audit.  At the 


time of preparation of the Audit 


Plan it is unlikely that full 


information as to all fees 


charged by GTI network firms 


will be available. Disclosure of 


these fees, threats to 


independence and safeguards 


will therefore be included in the 


Audit Findings report. 


 


Red text is generic and should 


be updated specifically for your 


client. 


Once updated, change text 


colour back to black. 


Fees, non-audit services and independence 


Fees 


£ 


CCG audit 75,000 


Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 75,000 







© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  | NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group Audit Findings Report 2014/15  |  May 2015 


Section 5: Communication of  audit matters 


01. Executive summary 


02. Audit findings 


03. Value for Money 


04. Fees, non-audit services and independence 


05. Communication of audit matters 







© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  | NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group Audit Findings Report 2014/15  |  May 2015 22 


Communication of  audit matters to those charged with governance 


Our communication plan 


Audit 


Plan 


Audit 


Findings 


Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 


charged with governance 


 


Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 


and expected general content of communications 


 


Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 


financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 


during the audit and written representations that have been sought 


 


Confirmation of independence and objectivity   


A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 


requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 


matters which might  be thought to bear on independence.  


Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 


network firms, together with  fees charged  


Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence 


 


 


 


Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit  


Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 


others which results in material misstatement of the financial 


statements 


 


Compliance with laws and regulations  


Expected unmodified auditor's report  


Uncorrected misstatements  


Significant matters arising in connection with related parties  


Significant matters in relation to going concern  


International Standards on Auditing ISA (UK&I) 260, as well as other ISAs, prescribe 


matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with governance, and 


which we set out in the table opposite.   


The Audit Plan outlined our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, while this Audit 


Findings report presents the key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together 


with an explanation as to how these have been resolved. 


Respective responsibilities 


The Audit Findings Report has been prepared in the context of the Statement of 


Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission 


(www.audit-commission.gov.uk).  


We have been appointed as the CCG's independent external auditors by the Audit 


Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 


in England. As external auditors, we have a broad remit covering finance and 


governance matters.  


Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice ('the 


Code') issued by the Audit Commission and includes nationally prescribed and locally 


determined work. Our work considers the CCG's key risks when reaching our 


conclusions under the Code.  


It is the responsibility of the CCG to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the 


conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted 


for.  We have considered how the CCG is fulfilling these responsibilities. 


 


 


Communication of audit matters 



http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/
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Appendices 


Appendices 
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Appendix A: Audit opinion 


We anticipate we will provide the CCG with an unmodified audit report. 


 


Guidance note 


Red text is generic and should 


be updated specifically for your 


client. 


Once updated, change text 


colour back to black. 


 


Please choose option 1, 2 or 3 


and delete the slides that are 


not required. 


 


Audit opinion – 


option 1  


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NHS STOCKPORT 


CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP 


  


We have audited the financial statements of NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group for the year 


ended 31 March 2015 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The financial statements comprise the 


Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of 


Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes. The financial reporting 


framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the accounting policies directed 


by the NHS Commissioning Board with the consent of the Secretary of State as relevant to the National 


Health Service in England.  


  


We have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is subject to audit, being:  


  


the table of salaries and allowances of senior managers and related narrative notes on page x 


the table of pension benefits of senior managers and related narrative notes on page y 


the disclosure of pay multiples and related narrative notes on page z. 


This report is made solely to the members of NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group in accordance 


with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 44 of the 


Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in March 


2014. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 


the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)'s members and the CCG as a body, for our audit work, for this 


report, or for the opinions we have formed. 


  


Respective responsibilities of the Accountable Officer and auditor 


  


As explained more fully in the Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities, the Accountable Officer 


is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and 


fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 


applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards also require us to 


comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 


  


 


  


  


  


  


  


  


 


  


 


Scope of the audit of the financial statements 


  


An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient 


to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether 


caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 


the CCG’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of 


significant accounting estimates made by the Accountable Officer; and the overall presentation of the 


financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report 


which comprises the Strategic Report, Members/Directors Report and Sustainability Report to identify 


material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is 


apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the 


course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 


inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 


  


In addition, we are required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the expenditure 


and income reported in the financial statements have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament 


and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.  


 


Opinion on regularity 


  


In our opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income reported in the financial statements have 


been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the 


authorities which govern them. 


  


Opinion on financial statements 


  


In our opinion the financial statements: 


  


give a true and fair view of the financial position of NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group as at 31 


March 2015 and of its net operating costs for the year then ended; and 


have been prepared properly in accordance with the accounting policies directed by the NHS 


Commissioning Board with the consent of the Secretary of State as relevant to the National Health Service 


in England.  


  


 


Appendices 
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Audit opinion – 


option 1  


Opinion on other matters 


  


In our opinion: 


  


the part of the Remuneration Report subject to audit has been prepared properly in accordance with the 


requirements directed by the NHS Commissioning Board with the consent of the Secretary of State as 


relevant to the National Health Service in England; and 


the information given in the annual report for the financial year for which the financial statements are 


prepared is consistent with the financial statements. Matters on which we report by exception 


  


We report to you if: 


in our opinion the governance statement does not reflect compliance with NHS England’s Guidance; 


we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under section 19 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 because we 


have reason to believe that the CCG, or an officer of the CCG, is about to make, or has made, a decision 


involving unlawful expenditure, or is about to take, or has taken, unlawful action likely to cause a loss or 


deficiency; or 


we issue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission Act 1998. 


  


We have nothing to report in these respects. 


  


  


Conclusion on the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 


of resources 


  


Respective responsibilities of the CCG and auditor 


  


The CCG is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 


effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly 


the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 


  


We are required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy ourselves that the CCG has 


made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The 


Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires us to report to you our conclusion relating 


to proper arrangements, having regard to relevant criteria specified by the Audit Commission in October 


2014. 


 We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the CCG 


has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 


resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the CCG’s 


arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 


effectively. 


  


 Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 


resources 


  


We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the 


guidance on the specified criteria, published by the Audit Commission in October 2014, as to whether the 


CCG has proper arrangements for: 


  


• securing financial resilience 


• challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 


 


The Audit Commission has determined these two criteria as those necessary for us to consider under the 


Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the CCG put in place proper arrangements for 


securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2015. 


  


We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice.  Based on our risk assessment, we 


undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant respects, the 


CCG had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 


resources. 


  


Conclusion 


  


On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria published by the Audit 


Commission in October 2014, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, NHS Stockport Clinical 


Commissioning Group put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 


its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2015. 


  


Certificate 


  


We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning 


Group in accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit 


Practice issued by the Audit Commission. 


  


[Signature] 


  


  


  


Mike Thomas 


for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor 


  


4 Hardman Square 


Spinningfields 


Manchester 


M3 3EB 


  


XX May 2015 
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Actions arising from Governing Body Part 1 Meetings

		NUMBER

		ACTION

		MinutE

		DUE DATE

		Owner and Update



		101114

		Report of the Chief Clinical Officer


To bring to the Governing Body a paper considering the governance arrangements between the CCG and the Greater Manchester-level groups




		197/14

		11 March


10 June

		R Gill


UPDATE: Deferred to June



		011214

		Report of the Chief Operating Officer


To share with the Governing Body the written feedback from the CQC inspection of children’s safeguarding




		205/14

		11 February

		G Mullins


UPDATE February 2015: This has not yet been received

UPDATE April 2015: This will be checked for factual accuracy and before it comes to Governing Body it will go to Quality & Provider management committee



		030215

		Performance Report


To bring a report from SRG on winter pressures and lessons learnt

		12/15

		June

		M Chidgey



		010315

		Audit committee minutes

Directors to consider the rescheduling of Governing Body meetings to earlier in the month

		27/15

		Date?

		G Mullins



		030315

		Draft operational plan


Include clinical leads within the plan

		33/15

		08 April


10 June

		T Ryley 

UPDATE: Going through the plan in lot of detail and looking at capacity across the organisation as part of the process.



		010415

		Report of the Chief Operating Officer

Paper to be taken to Governing Body outlining the basis of the award of the re-procurement of the Wet AMD service.

		49/15

		10 June

		G Mullins





NHS Stockport Clinical Commissioning Group 



8 April 2015 
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